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F A R M E R  & H U M B L E  
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

P. 0. BOX 212 
LAWRENCEBURG, KENTUCKY 40342 

(502) 839-3588 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Honorable Mayor and City Council 
City of Lawrenceburg 
100 North Main Street 
Lawrenceburg, Kentucky 40342 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, 
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Lawrenceburg, Kentucky, as of and for 
the year ended June 30,2005, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of 
contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the City's management. Our responsibility is to express 
an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and . . 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in v, issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a 
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes 
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the 
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial 
position of the govemmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund 
information of the City of Lawrenceburg as of June 30,2005, and the respective changes in financial position and cash 
flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America. 

. . 
In accordance with v, we have also issued our report dated September 15,2005, on our 
consideration of City of Lawrenceburg, Kentucky's internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The 
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial 
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Cravernment . . All(lltlnP and should be considered in conjunction with this report in considering the results of our audit. 

The management's discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 3-10 and 33 are not a 
required part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary information required by accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted 
principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required 
supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it. 





Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the 
City of Lawrenceburg, Kentucky's basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining and individual 
nonmajor fund financial statements, and statistical tables are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a 
required part of the basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is 
presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, 

Non-P- . . , and is not a required part of the basic financial 
statements of City of Lawrenceburg, Kentucky. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and 
the schedule of expenditure of federal awards have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 
basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial 
statements taken as a whole. The introductory section and statistical tables have not been subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them. 

@w 
Farmer & Humble 
Lawrenceburg, Kentucky 
September 15,2005 





CITY OF LAWRENCEBURG, KENTUCKY 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

TUNE 30,2005 

Within this section of the City of Lawrenceburg (City) a~lnual financial report, the City's management provides narrative 
discussion of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year ended June 30,2005. The City's financial performance is 
discussed and analyzed within the context of the accompanying financial statements and disclosure following this section. 
The discussion focuses on the City's primary government. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

The City's assets exceeded its liabilities by $14,922,367 (net assets) for the fiscal year reported. This compares to 
the previous year when assets exceeded liabilities by $13,431,353. 
Total net assets are comprised of the following: 
(1) Capital assets, net of related debt, of $7,544,962 include property and equipment, net of accumulated 

depreciation, and reduced for outstanding debt related to the purchase or construction of capital assets. 
(2) Net assets of $1,093,130 are restricted by constraints imposed from outside the city such as debt covenants, 

grantors, laws, or regulations. 
(3) Unrestricted net assets of $6,284,275 represent the portion available to maintain the City's continuing 

obligations to citizens and creditors 
At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance for the General Fund was $1,243,205, or 43.7% of 
total General Fund expenditures including transfers and 51.1% of total General Fund revenues including transfers. 
The City's governmental funds reported total ending fund balance of $1,421,394. This compares to the prior year 
ending fund balance of $1,226,012, showing an increase of $195,382 during the current year. Unreserved fund 
balance of $1,243,262 for fiscal year 2005 shows a $188,326 increase over the prior year. 
Total liabilities of the City increased by $5.1 million during the fiscal year. Interim KL4 financing issued for waste 
water treatment plan construction during the fiscal year was $3.7 million. 

Government-wide Financial Statements 

The City's annual report includes two government-wide financial statements. These statements provide both long-term and 
short-term information about the City's overall status. Financial reporting at this level uses a perspective similar to that found 
in the private sector with its basis in full accrual accounting and elimination or reclassification of internal activities. 

The first of these government-wide statements is the Statement of Net Assets. This is the City-wide statement of financial 
position presenting information that includes all of the City's assets and liabilities, with the difference reported as net assets. 
Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City as 
a whole is improving or deteriorating. Evaluation of the overall economic health of the City would extend to other non- 
financial factors such as diversification of the taxpayer base or the condition of the City infrastructure in addition to the 
financial information provided in this report. 

The second government-wide statement is the Statement ofActivities, which reports how the City's net assets changed during 
the current fiscal year. All current year revenues and expenses are included regardless of when cash is received or paid. An 
important purpose of the design of the statement of activities is to show the fmancial reliance of the City's distinct activities 
or functions on revenues provided by the City's taxpayers. 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Management's Discussion and Analysis introduces the City's basic financial statements. The basic financial statements 
include (1) government-wide financial statements, (2) fund fmancial statements, and (3) notes to the financial statements. 
The City also includes in this report additional information to supplement the basic financial statements. 





Both government-wide financial statements distinctively report governmental activities of the City that are principally 
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, such as grants, and business-type activities that are intended to recover 
all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges. Governmental activities include general government, 
public safety, public services, street, emergency managemenf and cemetery. Business-type activities include water utilities 
and solid waste management. Fiduciary activities such as cemetery trusts are not included in the government-wide statements 
since these assets are not available to fund City programs. 

The City's financial reporting entity includes the funds of the City (primary government). 

Fund Financial Statements 

A fund is an accountability unit used to maintain control over resources segregated for specific activities or objectives. The 
City uses funds to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related laws and regulations. Within the basic financial 
statements, fund financial statements focus on the City's most significant funds rather than the City as a whole. Major funds 
are separately reported while all others are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for non- 
major funds is provided in the form of combining statements in a later section of this report. 

The City has three kinds of funds: 

Governmentalfunds are reported in the fund financial statements and encompass essentially the same functions reported as 
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, the focus is very different with fund 
statements providing a distinctive view of the City's governmental funds. These statements report short-term fiscal 
accountability focusing on the use of spendable resources during the year and balances of spendable resources available at 
the end of the year. They are useful in evaluating annual financing requirements of governmental programs and the 
commitment of spendable resources for the near-term. 

Since the government-wide focus includes the long-term view, comparisons between these two perspectives may provide 
insight into the long-term impact of short-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the 
governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to the 
government-wide statements to assist in understanding the differences between these two perspectives. 

Budgetary comparison statements are included in the basic financial statements for the general fund and revenue fund. 
Budgetary comparison schedules for other special revenue funds can be found in a later section of this report. These 
statements and schedules demonstrate compliance with the City's adopted and final revised budget. 

Proprietaryfunds are reported in the fund financial statements and generally report services for which the City charges 
customers a fee. There are two kinds of proprietary funds. These are enterprise funds and internal services funds. Enterprise 
funds essentially encompass the same functions reported as business-type activities in the government-wide statements. 
Services are provided to customers external to the City organization such as the water and sewer utilities. 

Proprietary fund statements provide both long-term and short-term fmancial information consistent with the focus provided 
by the government-wide financial statements but with more detail for major enterprise funds. 

Fiduciaryfirnds such as the cemetery trusts are reported in the fiduciary fund financial statements, but are excluded from the 
government-wide reporting. Fiduciary fund financial statements report resources that are not available to fund City 
programs. Fiduciary fund financial statements report similarly to proprietary funds. 

Notes to the financial statements 

The accompanying notes to the financial statements provide information essential to a full understanding of the govement- 
wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements begin immediately following the basic financial 
statements. 





Other information 

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain required 
supplementary information. Supplementary information follows the notes to the financial statements. 

Major funds are reported in the basic financial statements as discussed. Combining and individual statements and schedules 
for non-major funds are presented in a subsequent section of this report. 

Financial Analysis of the City as a Whole 

As year-to-year financial information is accumulated on a consistent basis, changes in net assets may be observed and used 
to discuss the changing financial position of the City as whole. 

The City's net assets at fiscal year-end are $14,922,367. This is a $1,491,014 increase over last year's net assets of 
$13,43 1,353. The following table provides a summary of the City's net assets at June 30: 

SvmmaryofChanges in Net Assets 
(dollars are in thousands) 

Governmental Business-type Amount % 

mah W W  

Current and other assets 
Capital assets 

Total assets 

Long term liabilities outsranding 
Other liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Net asretr: 
Inverted in capital assets, 

net of related debt 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 

Total net assets 

The City reported positive balances in net assets for both governmental and business-type activities. Net assets increased 
$153,920 for governmental activities and $1,337,094 for business-type activities. The City's overall financial position 
improved during fiscal year 2005. 

Less positive factors affect the City's governmental activities. Market performance continues to be a concern to the City, and 
the safeguarding and maintenance of the City's most liquid assets is a priority. Investment income is also a component ofthe 
resources funding the City's continuing operations and service levels. Investment performance continued to be marginal 
during the 2005 fiscal year as interest rates remained low. The national economic recovery strengthened revenues, 
particularly taxes funding basic services. The City's governmental activities rely heavily on taxes. Revenue achieved 
projections as a result of the national economic recovery, as discussed. However, operating expenses continue to escalate at a 
faster pace then revenue growth. The City continued cost-control efforts to address operating costs in excess of revenue 
growth. Ln 2005, the economy is improving but rising costs continue to be a concern. 

Business-type activities realized continuing benefits from cost of service and rate design programs. The last of new rates 
authorized under previous studies was implemented in September 2004 for the City's major utilities. New cost of living rates 
under this study take effect on July 1 of each succeeding year. In fiscal year 2005, increased rates improved revenue. In fiscal 
year 2005, expected increases in utility revenues were realized. 





Comparative data is accumulated and presented to assist analysis. The following table provides a summary of the City's 
changes in net assets for the year ended June 30: 

Summary of Changes in Net Assets 

(dollars are In thousands) 

Governmental Business-type Amount % 

ACt iYh !  Toials - C b a o g e  

Revenues: 

Program revenues 

Charges for services 

Operating granLdcontributions 

Capital giantsicontributionr 

General revenues 

Taxes 

Licenses and pennits 

Interest 

Franchise taxes (fees) 

Grants and contributions 

Other 

Total revenues 

Expenses: 

General government 

Street 

Fire 

Police 

EMS 

Cemetery 

Interest 

Water and sewer utilities 

Increase in net assets 

before transfers 153.920 242.223 1.337.094 932.013 1,491.014 1.174 236 316.778 27.0% 

Beginning net assets 2.340.621 2.098.398 I1.090.732 158.719 13.431.353 12.257117 1.174.236 9.6% 

Ending net assets $ 2.494.541 $ 2.340.621 $ 12.427.826 $ 1,090.732 $ 14.922.367 $ 13.431.353 $ 1,491.014 11.1% 

Graphic presentations of selected data from the s u m a ~ ~  tables follow to assist in the analysis of the City's activities for 
fiscal year 2005. 





GOVERNMENTAL REVENUES 

2005 
Franchise taxes 

and contributions 

Licenses and 

Capital grants and 

Taxes 
65% 

Total $2,629,023 

2004 
Charges for Francbe taxes 

and contributions Licenses and 

Capsal grants and 

Taxes 
67% 

Total $2,463,744 

As graphically portrayed above and discussed earlier, the City is heavily reliant on property and insurance premium taxes to 
support governmental operations. These taxes provided 65% and 67% of the City's total governmental revenues in fiscal 
years 2005 and 2004, respectively. 





GOVERNMENTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 

General 
governmnt 

20% 

interest 
Police 
51 % 

\ \ Fire 

Total $2,475,103 

2004 

General 
/ gov;;,7t 

\ -  

Cemetery 
4% 

6% 

% 
Total $2,221,521 

This graph shows the total governmental activities cost of $2,475,103 for this year. Of this amount, police with $1,250,507 in 
cost for police was the largest operating service cosf at 5 1% of total cost of services in 2005, primarily funded by the City's 
taxing power. Police absorbed $1,185,029 in taxes to citizens and other general revenues. Other governmental activities with 
significant tax-based funding include general and administration. It should be noted that expenses were significantly adjusted 
from the fund statements to the government-wide statements for the purchase and construction of capital assets for both 2005 
and 2004. For the government-wide full accrual statements, capital outlay expenses are eliminated and capital assets 
reported. 

Financial Analysis of the City's Funds 

Governmental funds 

As discussed, governmental funds are reported in the fund statements with a short-term, inflow and outflow of spendable 
resources focus. This information is useful in assessing resources available at the end of the year in comparison with 
upcoming financing requirements. Governmental funds reported ending balances of $1,421,394. Of this year-end total, 
approximately $1,243,262 is u ~ e s e ~ e d  indicating availability for continuing City service requirements. Reserved fund 
balances include: $129,968 committed to prepaid expenses and $48,164 committed to street maintenance. 

-8- 





The total ending fund balances of governmental funds show an increase of $195,382 over the prior year. 

Major governmental funds 

The General Fund is the City's primary operating fund and the largest source of day-to-day service delivery. The fund 
balance of the General Fund increased by $92,430. Key factors contributing to this increase included the continued increase 
in taxes. Cost control efforts contained expenditures to levels reflected in the financial statements. 

Proprietary funds 

The proprietary fund statements share the same focus as the govemment-wide statements, reporting both short-term and 
long-term information about financial status. 

Major Proprietary Funds 

Water and Sewer Utilities Fund shares the financing and operations of the City's water and sewer utilities reported within 
this activity in the government-wide statements. Cost recovery efforts and the initiation of utility rate increases in September 
2004 as discussed in the City-wide financial analysis primarily contributed to the $5,495,207 increase in net assets reported 
in this major fund. 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights 

- The adopted General Fund budget for fiscal year 2005 was approximately 2.6 million. This was an increase of $200,000 ovet 
the previous year budget. 

The General Fund budget complied with financial policies approved by the City Council and maintained core City services. 

Capital Asset and Debt Administration (dollars are in thousands) 

Capital assets 

The City's investment in capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, for governmental and business-type activities as of 
June 30,2005, was $1,898,017 and $28,311,692, respectively. The total increase in this net investment was 36.5% for 
governmental and 54.1% for business-type activities. The overall increase was 24.8% for the City as a whole. Major capital 
asset additions during the current fiscal year included construction of the waste water .treatment plant. In conjunction with 
this project, financing was obtained through the Kentucky Infrastructure Authority. Purchase of the new city hall building 
and Alton area sewer improvements also contributed significantly to changes in the City's investment in capital assets. See 
Note 4 for additional information about changes in capital assets during the fiscal year and construction commitments 
outstanding at the end of the year. 

Capital Assets 
Net oIAecumulated Depreciation 

(dollars are in thousands) 
Governmental Business-type 

2.QQ5 tao4 24m tao4 Ul[ifr zM4 
Non-Depreciabie Assets: 

Land $ 113,500 $ 113,500 $ 94,570 $ 94,570 $ 208,070 $ 208,070 0.0% 
Consmotion in progress 5,507,008 809,241 5,507,008 809,241 580.5% 

Depreciable &sets: 
Buildings 1,262,718 768,607 860,803 916,536 2,123,521 1,685,143 26.0?4 
Infrasmcture/improvements 191,851 195,975 21,450,306 20,614,497 21,642,157 20,810,472 4.0% 
Furniture, machinery, equipment 329.948 312.235 399.005 381.541 728.953 693.776 51% 

Total revenues $ 1.898.017 $ 1.390.317 $ 28.311592 $ 22.816.385 $ 30.209.709 $ 24,206.702 24.8% 





Long-term debt 

At the end of the fiscal year, the City had total bonded debt outstanding of $20,045,930. This amount is supported by 
pledged revenues generated primarily by the business-type activities of the City (revenue bonds). During the current year, the 
City issued $3.7 million in revenue debt with the Kentucky Infrastructure Authority to fund the waste water treatment plant. 
See Note V for additional discussion. 

Bond Ratings 

Bond ratings are disclosed on the face of the final official statements for the bonds. Bond ratings have not changed since 
issuance. 

Outstanding Bonds 
(dollars are in thousands) 

Governmental Business-type 

m m m 2M4 
KIA Notes $ $ $ 3,693,930 $ 35,568 10285.5% 
Revenue bonds 16.352.000 16,592.000 -1.4% 
Total $ $ $ 20.045.930 $ 16.627.568 20.6% 

Water Utilities Rate Increases 

On September 4, 2004, the City adjusted water and wastewater rates across the hoard in conjunction with the adopted 
financial plan. Also in 2005, the City authorized an additional 3.26% cost of living adjustment to these rates. To provide 
adequate revenues to meet anticipated expenditures for operations debt service, and capital improvements as forecast for 
future fiscal years, the City and the City Council approved cost of living adjustments annually. 

CONTACTING THE CITY'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

This fmancial report is designed to a general overview of the City's fmances, compliance with finance-related laws and regulations, 
demonstrate the City's commitment to public accountability. If you have questions about this report or would like to request additional 
fmancial information, contact the City's Finance Deparhnent at City of Lawrenceburg, P.O. Box 290, 100 North Main Street, 
Lawrenceburg KY 40342. 





CITY OF LAWRENCEBURG, KENTUCKY 
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 

JUNE 30,2005 

ASSETS 
Current assets: 

Cash 
Investments 
Accounts receivable, net 
Due from other fund 
Interest receivable 
Notes receivable, current 
Prepaids 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 
Restricted investments 

Total current assets 

Non-Current assets: 
Notes receivable 
Deferred debt expense, net 
Capital assets: 

Land and construction in oroeress 

Governmental Business-type 
Activities Activities Totals 

. - . . 
Other capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 1,784,517 22,710,114 24;494;631 

Total non-current assets 1,944,267 28,558,321 30,502,588 
Total assets $ 3,386,703 $ 34,697,816 $ 38,084,519 

LIABILITIES 
Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable 
Accrued liabilities 
Due to other fund 
Payable from restricted assets: 

Accounts payable 
Retainage payable 
Interest payable 
Notes and revenue bonds payable, current 
Deposits 
Capital lease obligation 

Total current liabilities 

Non-current liabilities: 
Compensated absences, non-current 
Capital lease obligation, non-current 
Notes and revenue bonds payable 

Total non-current liabilities 
Total Liabilities 

NET ASSETS 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 
Restricted for: 

Debt service 
Capital projects 
Street maintenance 

Unrestricted 
Total net assets 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
-1 1- 





CITY OF  LAWRENCEBURG, KENTUCKY 
STATEMENT OF ACrlVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2005 

FunetiooslPrograms 

Primary Government: 

Governmental Activities: 

General government 

Street 

Fire 

Police 

EMS 

Cemetery 

Interest and fiscal charges 

Total Governmental Aetivities 

Business-type Activities: 

Water and sewer utilities 

Total Business-Type Activities 

Total Primary Government 

Program Revenues Net (Expenses) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets 

Operating Capital Primary Government 

Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-type 

Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total 

Taxes 

Licenses and permits 

Franchise taxes (fees) 

Unrestricted investment income 

Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs 

Gain an sale ofcapital assets 

Transfers 

Miscellaneous 

Total general revenues and transfers 

Changes in net assets 

Net assets-beginning 

Net assets-ending 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 





ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 

Taxes receivable 

Accounts receivable 

Notes receivable 

Prepaid expenditures 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

Liabilities 

Accounts payable 

Accmed liabilities 

Due to other funds 

Total Liabilities 

CITY OF LAWRENCEBURG, KENTUCKY 
BALANCE SHEET 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
AS OF JUNE 30,2005 

Other Total 

Governmental Governmental 

General Funds Funds 

Fund Balances 

Reserved for prepaids 

Reserved for street maintenance 

Unreserved, reported in: 

General Fund 

Special revenue funds 

Total Fund Balances 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 





CITY OF LAWRENCEBURG, KENTUCKY 
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 
JUNE 30,2005 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets 
are different because: 

Total fund balance total governmental funds $ 1,421,394 

Capital assets of $2,701,967 net of accumulated depreciation ($803,950) are not 
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. See note 4 
for additional detail. 1,898,017 

Long-term liabilities, including capital leases and compensated absences, 
are not due and payable in the current period and are not reported 
in the funds. (824,870) 

Net assets of governmental activities 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
-14- 





CITY OF LAWRENCEBURG, KENTUCKY 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2005 

Other Total 
Nonmajor Governmental 

General Funds Funds 

REVENUES 
Property taxes 
Licenes and permits 
Franchise taxes (fees) 
Fines and forfeitures 
Rental income 
Charges for services 
Investment income 
Other taxes 
Cemetery 
Contributions 
Intergovernmental programs 
Other 615 615 

Total Revenues 2,425,212 203,827 2,629,039 

EXPENDITURES 
Current- 

General government 
Street 
Fire 
Police 
EMS 
Cemetery 

Debt service- 
Princioal retirement 
Interest 17,162 17,162 

Total Expenditures 2,833,837 200,875 3,034,712 
Excess (deficiency) of revenues 

over (under) expenditures (408,625) 2,952 (405,673) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Capital financing 
Sale of assets 
Transfers from other funds 
Transfers to other funds (9,297) (9,297) 

Net Other Financing Sources (Uses) 601,055 601,055 
Net Change in Fund Balances 192,430 2,952 195,382 

Fund Balances, beginning 
Fund Balances, ending 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 





CITY OF LAWRENCEBURG, KENTUCKY 
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES 

EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2005 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities 
are different because: 

Net change in fund balances-total govenunental funds 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the 
statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated 
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which 
capital outlay of $655,681 exceeded depreciation iof $146,910 in the current 
period. 

In the statement of activities, the gain on the sale of assets is reported, whereas in 
the governmental funds, the proceeds form the sale increases fmancial resources. 
The change in net assets differs from the change in fund balance by the cost of 
the assets sold, net of accumulated depreciation. 

The proceeds of debt (issuances) provides current financial resources to governmental 
funds, but issuing debt increases long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets. 
Repayment of debt principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the 
repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets. This is the 
amount by which debt proceeds of $600,000 exceeded repayments of $54,749. 

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of 
current fmancial resources and are not reported as expenditures in 
governmental funds. This is the next increase in compensated absences. 

Change in net assets of governmental activities 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 







CITY OF LAWRENCEBURG, KENTUCKY 

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 
PROPRIETARY FUND 

JUNE 30,2005 

Water and 
Sewer 

ASSETS 
Current Assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 
investments 
Accounts receivable, net 
Due from other fund 
Accrued interest receivable 
Prepaids 

Restricted assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 

Total restricted assets 
Total current assets 

Deferred debt expense, net 
Capital assets: 

Land and construction in progress 5,601,578 
Other capital asset, net of accumulated depreciation 22,710,114 

Total non-current assets 
Total assets 



Water and 
Sewer 

LIABILITIES 
Current Liabilities: 

Accounts payable 
Accrued liabilities 
Capital lease obligation, current 

Current Liabilities Payable From Restricted Assets: 
Accounts payable 
Retainage 
interest payable 
Notes and revenue bonds payable, current 
Deposits 

Total current liabilities 

Noncurrent Liabilities 
Compensated absences, non-current 
Lease obligations payable, non-current 
Notes and revenue bonds payable, non-current 

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

NET ASSETS 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 
Restricted for debt service 
Restricted for capital projects 
Unrestricted 

Total net assets 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 





CITY OF LAWRENCEBURG, KENTUCKY 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN 

FUND NET ASSETS-PROPRIETARY FUND 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2005 

Enterprise 
Water and Sewer 

Operatine Revenues 
Charges for services 
Other 

Total Operating Revenues 

Operatine Ex~enses  
Personnel services 
Materials and supplies 
Maintenance 
Transportation and training 
Utilities 
Insurance 
Rent 
Legal and professional 
Depreciation 
Other 
River Authority Fee 

Total Operating Expenses 

Operating Income 

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 
Intergovemmental revenues 
Investment income 
Interest expense and fiscal charges 

Total Nonoperating Revenue 

Change in Net Assets 

Total Net Assets, beginning 

Total Net Assets, ending 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 





CITY OF LAWRENCEBURG, KFNTUCKY 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS-PROPRIETARY FUND 

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2005 

Cash flows from opera tin^ activities: 
Cash received from customers $ 4,039,102 
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services (1,159,613) 
Cash payments to employees and professional contractors for services (1,184,679) 
Net cash provided by operating activities 1,694,810 

Cash flows from cavital and related financinp activities: 
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (5,OO 1,247) 
Principal paid on bonds, notes, and lease obligations (283,187) 
Interest paid on bonds, notes, and lease obligations (636,046) 
Customer deposits 15,710 
Capital grants received 1,019,851 
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 3,663,556 
Net cash used by capital and related financing activities (1,221,363) 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Investment income 
Purchase of investments 
Net cash provided by investing activities 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 524,207 

Cash and cash equivalents at July 1,2004 
Cash and cash equivalents at June 30,2005 

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash 
provided bv operating activities: 

Operating Income 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income 

to net cash provided by operating activities: 
Depreciation 
Changes in assets and liabilities: 

(Increase) in accounts receivable 
(Increase) in due from other funds 
Decrease in prepaids 
(Decrease) in accounts payable 
Increase in accrued liabilities 
Increase in compensated absences 

Total adjustments 
Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities 

See accompanying notes to fmancial statements. 





ASSETS 
Due from general fund 
Interest and dividends receivable 
Investments, at fair value: 

Domestic common stock 
Passive domestic stock funds 
Government securitieslfixed income 
Passive bond funds 
Treasury money market fund 
Total Assets 

CITY OF LAWRENCEBURG, KENTUCKY 
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS 
JUNE 30,2005 

Cemetery Trust 
Funds 

NET ASSETS 
Held in trust for cemetery maintenance 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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CITY OF LAWRENCEBURG, KENTUCKY 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2005 

ADDITIONS: 
Transfers from general fund $ 9,297 
Investment Income: 

Net Appreciation in Fair Value of Investments 10,485 

Interest 3,232 
Dividends 6,892 

Total Additions $ 29,906 

DEDUCTIONS: 
Capital losses 
Transfers to general fund 
Administrative expenses 

Total Deductions 

Change in Net Assets $ 18,538 
Net Assets Held in Trust for Cemetery Maintenance: 

Beginning of Year 
End of Year 

See accompanying notes to fmancial statements. 
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CITY OF LAWRENCEBURG, KENTUCKY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30,2005 

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICES 

I.A. INTRODUCTION 

The accounting and reporting framework and the more significant accounting principles and practices of Lawrenceburg 
(City) are discussed in subsequent sections of this Note. The remainder of the Notes are organized to provide explanations, 
including required disclosures, of the City's financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005. The City 
implemented new reporting standards for deposit and investment disclosure and economic condition reporting. 

I.B. FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY-BASIS OF PRESENTATION 

I.B. 1. COMPOMENT UNITS 

Lawrenceburg is a city in which citizens elect the mayor and six council members at large. The accompanying financial 
statements present the City's primary government. Potential component units are ones over which the City exercises 
significant influence. Significant influence or accountability is based primarily on operational or financial relationships with 
the City (as distinct from legal relationships). Currently, there are no potential component units. 

I.B. 2. GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FLNANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Government-wide Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements include the statement of net assets and the statement of activities. These 
statements report financial information for the City as a whole excluding fiduciary activities such as cemetery trusts. The 
primary government is presented separately within the financial statements with the focus on the primary government. 
Individual funds are not displayed but the statements distinguish governmental activities, generally supported by taxes and 
City general revenues, from business-type activities, generally financed in whole or in part with fees charged to external 
customers. 

The statement of activities reports the expenses of a given function offset by program revenues directly connected with the 
functional program. A function is an assembly of similar activities and may include portions of a fund or summarize more 
than one fund to capture the expenses and program revenues associated with a distinct functional activity. Program revenues 
include: (I)  charges for services which report fees, fines and forfeitures, and other charges to users of the City's services; (2) 
operating grants and contributions which finance annual operating activities including restricted investment income; and (3) 
capital grants and contributions which fund the acquisition, construction, or rehabilitations of capital assets and include fees 
to developers. These revenues are subject to externally imposed restrictions to these program uses. Taxes and other revenue 
sources not properly included with program revenues are reported as general revenues. 

Fund Financial Statements 

Fund financial statements are provided for governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary funds. Major individual govemmental 
and enterprise funds are reported in separate columns with composite columns for non-major funds. 

I.B. 3. MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING, AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION 

The financial statements of the City are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The 
City's reporting entity applies all relevant Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements and 
applicable Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) pronouncements and Accounting Principles Board (APB) 
opinions issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless they conflict with GASB pronouncements. The City's reporting 
entity does not apply FASB pronouncements or APB opinions issued after November 30, 1989. 





The government-wide statements report using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of 
accounting generally including the reclassification or elimination of internal activity (between or within funds). 
Reimbursements are reported as reductions to expenses. Proprietary and fiduciary fund financial statements also report using 
this same focus and basis of accounting although internal activity is not eliminated in these statements. Revenues are 
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. 
Property tax revenues are recognized in the year for which they are levied while grants are recognized when grantor 
eligibility requirements are met. 

Governmental fund financial statements report using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified 
accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when they are both measurable and available. Available means 
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay current liabilities. The City considers revenues to be 
available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the fiscal year. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund 
liability is incurred. 

Major revenue sources susceptible to accrual include: property taxes, franchise taxes (fees), intergovernmental revenues, and 
investment income. In general, other revenues are recognized when cash is received. 

Operating income reported in proprietary fund financial statements includes revenues and expenses related to the primary, 
continuing operations of the fund. Principal operating revenues for proprietary funds are charges to customers for sales or 
services. Principal operating expenses are the costs of providing goods or services and include administrative expenses and 
depreciation of capital assets. Other revenues and expenses are classified as non-operating in the financial statements. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's policy to use restricted resources first, 
then unrestricted resources as needed. Restricted assets and liabilities payable from restricted assets current in nature are 
reported with current assets and current liabilities in the financial statements. Investments, non-current report assets 
restricted for acquisition or construction of non-current assets, or are restricted for liquidation of long-term debt. 

I.B. 4. FUND TYPES AND MAJOR FUNDS 

Governmental Funds 

General Fund-reports as the primary fund of the City. This fund is used to account for all financial resources not reported in 
other funds. 

Proprietary Funds 

The City reports the following major enterprise fund: 

Water and Sewer Utilities Fund-accounts for the operating activities of the City's water and sewer utilities services. 

Other Fund Types 

The City also reports the following fund type: 

Cemetery Trust Fund- report fiduciary resources held in trust and the receipt, investment, and distribution of cemetery 
maintenance funds. 

I.C. ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND NET ASSETS OR EQUITY 

I.C.1. CASH AND INVESTMENTS 

The City Council adopted formal deposit and investment policies. These policies apply to all City funds not contained in 
trusts. These trusts are managed independently by Farmers Bank and Capital Trust Company. 

In prior years, the City considered highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less when 
purchased to be cash equivalents. To better support the new investment disclosure implemented this year, the City changed 
this definition. Only cash is classified as cash equivalents in order to appropriately report investment activity. 
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Investments are reported at fair value which is determined using selected bases. Short-term investments are reported at cost, 
which approximates fair value. Securities traded on a national or international exchange are valued at the last reported sales 
price at current exchange rates. 

Prepaids record payments to vendors that benefit future reporting periods and are also reported on the consumption basis. 
Prepaids are similarly reported in government-wide and fund financial statements. 

I.C.3. CAPITAL ASSETS, DEPRECIATION, AND AMORTIZATION 

The City's property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure with useful lives of more than one year are stated at historical cost 
and reported in the government-wide financial statements. Proprietary capital assets are also reported in their respective fund 
financial statements. Donated assets are stated at fair value on the date donated. The City generally capitalizes assets with 
cost of $500 or more as purchase and construction outlays occur. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not 
add to the asset value or materially extend useful lives are not capitalized. Capital assets are depreciated using the straight- 
line method. When capital assets are disposed, the cost and applicable accumulated depreciation are removed from the 
respective accounts, and the resulting gain or loss is recorded in operations. Estimated useful lives, in years, for depreciable 
assets are as follows: 

Buildings 10-50 
Infrastructure and improvements other than buildings 20-45 
Mobile equipment, furniture, machinery, and equipment 5-15 

I.C.4. CAPITALIZED INTEREST 

Interest costs are capitalized when incurred by proprietary funds on debt where proceeds were used to finance the 
construction of assets. Interest earned on proceeds of tax-exempt borrowing arrangements restricted to the acquisition of 
qualifying assets is offset against interest costs in determining the amount to be capitalized. 

I.C.5. LONGTERM DEBT, DEFERRED DEBT EXPENSE, AND BOND DISCOUNTS/PREMIIUMS 

In the government-wide and proprietary financial statements, outstanding debt is reported as liabilities. Bond issuance costs, 
bond discounts or premiums, and the difference between the reacquisition price and the net canying value of refunded debt 
are capitalized and amortized over the terms of the respective bonds using a method that approximates the effective interest 
method. 

The governmental fund financial statements recognize the proceeds of debt and premiums as other financing sources of the 
current period. Issuance costs are reported as expenditures. 

I.C.6. FUND EQUITY 

The governmental fund financial statements report reserved fund balance for amounts not available for appropriation or 
legally restricted for specified purposes. 

I.D. REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND EXPENSES 

I.D.1. COMPENSATED ABSENCES 

Full-time, permanent employees are granted vacation benefits in varying amounts to specified maximums depending on 
tenure with the City. Sick leave accrues to full-time, permanent employees to specified maximums. Generally, after one year 
of service, employees are entitled to all accrued vacation leave upon termination. The estimated liabilities include required 
salary-related payments. Compensated absences are reported as accrued in the government-wide and proprietary financial 
statements. Governmental funds report only matured compensated absences payable to currently terminating employees and 
are included in wages and benefits payable. 





1I.B. BUDGETARY INFORMATION 

II.B.l. BUDGET POLICY AND PRACTICE 

The mayor submits an annual budget to the City Council in accordance with City ordinances and the Kentucky Revised 
Statutes. The budget is presented to the City Council for review, and two readings are held to address priorities and the 
allocation of resources. In June, the City Council adopts the annual fiscal year budgets for City operating funds. Once 
approved, the City Council may amend the legally adopted budget when unexpected modifications are required in estimated 
revenues and appropriations. 

II.B.2. BASIS O F  BUDGETING 

Each fund's appropriated budget is prepared on a detailed line item basis. Revenues are budgeted by source. Expenditures 
are budgeted by department and class as follows: personal services, other services and charges, supplies, capital outlay, 
transfers, and debt service. Budget revisions at this level are subject to final review by the City Council. The legal level of 
control is by department within a fund. Expenditures may not exceed appropriations at this level. Within these control levels, 
management may transfer appropriations without Council approval. No revisions to the budget were made this year. 

The budgets for the operating funds and proprietary fund operations are prepared on the cash and 
expendituresfencumbrances basis. Revenues are budgeted in the year receipt if expected; and expenditures are budgeted in 
the year that the applicable purchase orders are expected to be issued. The budget and actual financial statements are 
reported on these bases. Unencumbered appropriations for annually budgeted funds lapse at fiscal year-end. 

III. DETAILED NOTES ON FUNDS AND COMPONENT UNITS 

III. A. ASSETS 

III. A. 1 DEPOSITS, INVESTMENTS, AND SECURITIES LENDING (in thousands) 

Deposits 

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the City's deposits may not be returned or the 
City will not be able to recover collateral securities in the possession of an outside party. The City's policy requires deposits 
to be secured by collateral valued at market or par, whichever is lower, less the amount of the Federal Deposit Insurance 
Corporation (FDIC). Deposited funds may be invested in certificates of deposit in institutions with an established record of 
fiscal health and service. Collateral agreements must be approved prior to deposit of funds as provided by law. 

Deposits of the City's reporting entity are insured or collateralized with securities held by the City, its agent, or by the 
pledging financial institution's trust department or agent in the name of the City. 

Investments 

As of June 30,2005, the City's reporting entity had the following investments: 

Weighted 
Average Average 

Fair Value/ Credit Quality1 Days to 
Carrvine Amount Cost Rates (1) Maturih, (2 )  - 

Primary Government 
Certificates of Deposits 1.689.197 $ 1,689.197 N A 283 

$ 1,689,197 $ 1,689,197 

(1) Ratings are provided where applicable to indicate associated Credit R isk  NA indicates not applicable. 
(2) Interest Rate Risk is estimated using either duration or weighted average days to maturity depending on the 
respective policy. 





The composition of cemetery trust funds investments at fair value is shown on the following table. 

Domestic common sfocwfund 
Corporate bonds 
Government securitiesifixed income 
Bond funds 
Treasury money market fund 

Total investments 

Cemetery 
Beulah Collins Perpetual 
Cemetery Fund Care Totals 

Investment Policies 

City Policy 

Credit Risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations. Generally, the 
City's investing activities are managed under the custody of the City Treasurer. Investing is performed in accordance 
with investment policies adopted by the City Council complying with the State Statutes and the City ordinances. City 
funds may invested in: (1) obligations of the Government National Mortgate Association, Federal National Mortgage 
Association, or Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation, or any Federal farm credit bank, Federal land bank, or 
Federal home loan bank notes or bonds; (2) collateralized or insured certificates of deposit and other evidences of 
deposits at banks, savings bank, savings and loan associations, and credit unions located in the City when secured by 
appropriate collateral; (3) repurchase agreements that have underlying collateral of direct obligations or obligations of the 
United States government, its agencies and instrumentalities; (4) money market funds regulated by the Securities and 
Exchange Commission and which investments consist of the authorized investments (domestic securities) with 
restrictions as specified by state law; (5) Sate and Local Government Series (SLGS); and (6) City direct debt obligations 
for which an ad valorem tax may be levied or bonds issued by a public trust of which the City is a beneficiary and 
judgements rendered against the City by a court of record, provided it is a prudent investment. 

Under the City policy, the City may not invest in reverse repurchase agreements, derivative instruments created from who 
value depends on, or is derived from, the value of one or more underlying assets or indices of asset values andlor has no 
call options prior to the City's desired maturity or is a variable rate instrument. Collateralization is further restricted to 
permitted investments shown previously as items (1) and (2). 

Interest Rate Risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. 
Investments held for longer periods are subject to increased risk of adverse interest rate changes. The City policy 
provides that to the extent practicable, investments are matched with anticipated cash flows. Investments are diversified 
to minimize the risk of loss resulting from over-concentration of assets in a specific maturity period or a single user. 
Unless matched to a specific cash flow, investments are not made in securities maturing more than five years from the 
date of purchase. Concentration of Credit Risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of the City's investments 
in a single issuer. 

City policy also allows surplus cash, certificates of deposit, and repurchase agreements to be collateralized with securities 
with longer maturities if such maturity does not exceed ten years. 

For investments, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the City will not be 
able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities in the possession of an outside party. City policy 
provides that investment collateral is held by a third party custodian with whom the City has a current custodial 
agreement in the City's name or be held in the name of both parties by the Federal Reserve Bank sewicing Kentucky. 

Cemetery Trust Policy 

The City's two cemetery trusts are the Beulah Collins Cemetery Fund and the Cemetery Perpetual Care Trust. 
Investments policies provide for investment manager(s) who have full discretion of assets allocated to them subject to the 
overall investment guidelines set out in the policies. Manager performance is reviewed by a consultant who provides 





reports to the respective governing boards. Any changes in the investment management firm must be reported as they 
occur. Overall investment guidelines provide for diversification and allow investment in domestic and international 
common stocks, fixed income securities, cash equivalents, index funds, collective trust funds, and mutual fund. Both 
plans address custodial credit risk similarly with policy providing for the engagement of a custodian who accepts 
possession of securities for safekeeping; collects and disburses income; collects principal of sold, mature, or called items; 
and provides periodic accounting to the City. The cemetery trust holds $130,085 in common stock or stock funds. 

III. A. 2. RECEIVABLES, UNCOLLECTIBLE ACCOUNTS, AND D E F E W D  REVENUE 

Enterprise Receivable and Uncollectible Accounts 

Significant receivables include amounts due form customers primarily for utility services. These receivables are due within 
fifteen days. The enterprise fund reports accounts receivable net of an allowance for uncollectible accounts and revenues net 
of uncollectibles. The allowance amount is estimated using accounting receivable past due more than 30 to 90 days. Related 
amounts are shown in the following table: 

Accounts receivable 

Less: allowance for uncollectible accounts (21.557) 
Net accounts receivable 508.854 

Uncollectible amounts netted with revenues $ 21,557 

Properly Taxes Receivable and Property Tax Calendar 

Property taxes are collected and remitted to the City by property owners. Taxes levied annually on January are due by 
December 3 1. Major tax payments are received October through January. 

In the governmental fund financial statements, the receivables represent delinquent taxes. 

In the government-wide financial statements, property taxes receivable and related revenue include all amounts due the City 
regardless of when cash is received. Over time, substantially all property taxes are collected. 

IntergovernmentaI Revenues 

Intergovernmental receivables are primarily comprised of amounts due from the Kentucky government (g~ants). Revenue is 
recorded as earned when eligibility requirements are met. 

IU. A. 3. CAPITAL ASSETS 

Changes in Capital Assets 

The following table provides a summary of changes in capital assets (in thousands): 





CAPITAL ASSETS. NOT DEPRECIATED 

Consmction 
Land in Prograss 

Primary Government 
Governmenla[ Acriviries 

Balance, June 30,2004 $ 113,500 $ 

Increases 
Decreases 

Balance, June 30,2005 113.500 

CAPITAL ASSETS. DEPRECIATED 
Infrastructure and 

Improvements Furniture, 
Other Than Machineiy, 

Buildings Buildings and Equipment Totals 

Accumulated Depreciation 
Balance, June 30,2004 $ $ $ 170,225 $ 86,392 $ 401,852 $ 658,469 

Increases 31,670 16,272 98,967 146,909 
Decreases f 1.4291 (1.429) 

Balance, June 30,2005 201.895 102.664 499,390 803.949 

Governmental Activities 

Capital Assets, Net $ 113.500 % $ 1.210.414 $ 246.005 $ 328.098 $ 1.898.017 

Business-type Acfivilies 
Balance, June 30,2004 $ 94,570 $ 809,241 $ 1,851,637 $ 27,118,794 $ 1,548,280 $ 31,422,522 

Increases 6,068,516 14,854 1,452,350 98,966 7,634,686 
Decreases (1.370.749) (1.370.7491 

Balance, June 30, ZOOS 94.570 5.507.008 1.866.491 28.571.144 1.647.246 37.686.459 

Accumulated Depreciation 
Balance, June 30,2004 $ $ 

Increases 
Decreases 

Balance, June 30,2005 956.542 7.168.822 1.249.403 9,374.767 

Business-type Activities 
Capital Assets, Net $ 94.570 $ 5.507.008 $ 909.949 $ 21,402.322 % 397,843 $ 28.3 11,692 

Primary Government 
Capital Assets, Net $ 208.070 $ 5.507.008 $ 2.120.363 $ 21.648.327 % 725,941 $ 30.209.709 

Commitments 

Active construction in progress is composed of the following (in thousands): 
Spent to Remaining 

June 30,2005 Commitment 
Primary Government 
Business-fype Activities: 

Waste Water Treatment Plant $ 5,159,302 $ 2,561,978 
Utilities System Improvements 42,302 80,000 
Elevated Water Tank 305,404 194,596 

Depreciation Expense 

Depreciation expense was charged to functions of the primary government as follows (in thousands): 
Governmental Activiiies Business-tvve Activities 
General government $ 33,630 Water utilities $ 447,164 
Street 40,756 Sold waste management 321,466 
Police 37,960 
Fire 25,945 
Cemetery 8,618 





III. A. 4. RESTRICTED ASSETS AM) RESTRICTED NET ASSETS 

Certain proprietary fund assets are restricted for construction funded through long-term debt and customer deposits, and 
Federal grant revenues. Net assets restricted for debt service include the excess of assets over certain liabilities restricted for 
the debt service on revenue bonds. Cash is restricted for deposits in bank accounts legally restricted for specified uses such 
as the payment of currently maturing debt service and annual fiscal fees on long-term debt. 

m. B.1 LEASE COMMJTMENTS 

Capital Leases 

The City's outstanding lease agreements include the acquisition of City Hall at a cost of $520,000 and Northwest Sewer 
Interceptor at a cost of $470,578. These leases qualify as capital leases. 

The debt service for capital leases are: 

Year Ending 
.hlne3Q 

2006 
2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
2011-2015 
20 16-2020 
202 1-2005 
2026-2030 
203 1-2035 
Totals 

Governmental Activities Business-Twe Activities 
Canital Leases (1) 

Citv-Wide Water & Sewer Utilities 
Princinal Interest Princinal Interest 

$ 71,150 $ 36,370 $ 38,405 $ 18,453 
60,183 32,965 32,646 16,502 
42,374 30,251 33,030 15,041 
33,094 28,914 28,623 14,101 
23,565 27,708 25,000 13,043 

108,635 119,807 135,000 47,119 
110,000 93,128 124,999 12,808 
130,000 62,849 
160,000 26,343 
35,000 161 

$ 774.001 $ 458,496 $ 417.703 $ 137,067 

Range of interest rates 2.23%-5.75% 
Cost of assets 887,884 
Accumulated depreciation 141,346 

(1) For capital leases, totals of principal and interest components equal required minimum payments for periods 
shown, and total principal equals the net present value of these leases. 

Revenue Bonds 

Revenue bonds outstanding consist of debt issued for water and sewer construction projects. In general, revenues derived 
from them are pledged for the payment of revenue bond debt service. Debt is issued for the purposes of the fund 
responsible for payment as shown in the table on the following pages. 

Bond indentures contain significant requirements for annual debt service and flow of funds through various restricted 
accounts. The general bond indenture and its supplements for water and wastewater bonds require the use of revenue, 
bond, operations and maintenance, reserve, construction, and renewal and replacement accounts. The reporting entity is 
in compliance with all significant requirements of the various bond covenants. The parity standards of the bond 
ordinances require net revenues to exceed 1.3 times the maximum annual debt service requirement. The net revenues 
equal 1.66 times the maximum annual principal and interest requirements for outstanding bonds for fiscal year 2005. 





Changes in Long-Term Debt 

The following is a summary of changes in long-term debt for the year ended June 30,2005: 

Balance Balance Due 
July I, June 30, Within 
m I.sw.i RetiLed 2MI L-lmYex 

Primary Government 
Governmental Activities 

Compensated absences $ 46,958 21,400 15,491 52,867 1,998 
Lease obligations payable 228,750 600,000 54,749 774.001 71,150 

Total governmental activities 275,708 621,400 70.240 826,868 73.148 

Business-type Activities 
Enterprise fund 16,592,000 240,000 16,352,000 
Revenue bonds 7,003 382,000 
Compensated absences 62,805 10,547 5,194 66,349 1,877 
KIA notes payable 35,568 3,663,556 37,993 3,693,930 14,656 
Lease obligations payable 455,696 417,703 38,405 

Total business-type activities 17,146.069 3.674.103 290,190 20,529.982 436,938 
Total Primaiy Governmental Long-term Debt $ 17,421.777 $ 4.295.503 $ 360.430 $ 21,356.850 $ 510.086 

KIA Note-Wastewater Treatment Plant 

The Kentucky Infrastructure Authority has approved a loan for the new wastewater treatment plant in the amount of 
$8,265,703. As of June 30, 2005, $3,663,556 has been issued and is outstanding at year end. The City currently pays 
interest of 3%.per annum twice yearly, but no payment schedule will be drawn up until the payment is complete. Upon 
completion, the loan will be repaid over a period of twenty years, twice yearly. Because of the uncertainty of the date and 
amount of future payments, this note has not been included in the following debt service repayment schedule. 

Additional Debt Disclosure (dollars are in thousands) 

Outstanding Bonds, Maturity Dates, and Interest Rates 

Amount of Range of Final Range of 
lnwe%hm 

Primary Government 
Business-type Activities 

Revenue Bonds: 
Water and Sewer Utilities 16,610,000 2006-2043 2.5%-5% 

Debt Service Requirements to Maturity ( I )  

The annual debt service requirements to maturity for bonded debt as of June 30 are as follows: 





Business-Tvoe Activities 
Year Ending Maior Enterprise Fund 

2006 
2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
2011-2015 
2016-2020 
2021-2005 
2026-2030 
203 1-2035 
2036-2040 
204 1-2045 
Totals 

Revenue Bonds and KIA Notes 
Water and Sewer 

Princi~al Interest 
$ 396,656 $ 704,363 

407,718 692,194 
402,000 679,620 
417,000 666,613 
302,000 654,016 

1,739,000 3,069,004 
2,200,000 2,649,480 
2,704,000 2,096,467 
2,924,000 1,384,150 
1,524,000 909,43 1 
1,946,000 531,781 
1.420.000 95,375 

$ 16,382.374 $ 14,132,494 

(1) SeeNote 111. B. 1 for debt service relating to leases. 

Description 

Significant losses are covered by commercial insurance for all major programs. For insured programs, there have been no 
significant reductions in insurance coverage. Settlement amounts have not exceeded insurance coverage for the current 
year or the three prior years. 

m. C. BALANCES AND TRANSFERSRAYMENTS WITHJB THE REPORTING ENTITY 

JII. C. 1. RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES 

Generally, outstanding balances between funds reported as "due tolfrom other funds" including outstanding charges by 
one fund to another for services or goods, subsidy commitments outstanding at year-end, and other miscellaneous 
receivableslpayables between funds. Activity between funds that is representative of lendingbonowing arrangements 
outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are described as "due tolfrom other funds" (i.e., the current portion of interfund 
loans) or "advances tolfrom other funds" (i.e., the non-current portion of interfund loans). 

Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the 
government-wide financial statements as "internal balances." 

The following schedule reports receivables and payables within the reporting entity at fiscal year-end: 
Due From 

Due To 
Water and Cemetery Total 

Sewer Utilities T ~ s t s  Due From 
Governmental Activities: 
General $ 1,242 $ 1,792 $ 3,034 

. EMPLOYEE RETIREMEm SYSTEM 

Courzty Employees Retirement System JCERS) 

City employees who work at least 100 hours per month participate in the County Employees Retirement System (CERS). 
Under the provisions of Kentucky Revised State 61.645, the Board of Trustees of Kentucky Retirement Systems 
administers the CERS. 
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The plan issues separate financial statements which may be obtained by request from Kentucky Retirement Systems, 1260 
Louisville Road, Frankfort, Kentucky 40601. 

Plan Description-CERS is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan that covers substantially all 
regular full-time members employed in positions of each county and school board, and any additional eligible local 
agencies electing to participate in the System. The plan provides for retirement, disability, and death benefits to plan 
members. Retirement benefits may be extended to beneficiaries of plan members under certain circumstances. Cost-of- 
living (COLA) adjustments are provided at the discretion of the state legislature. 

Contributions-For the year ended June 30, 2005, plan members were required to contribute 5% non-hazardous and 8.48% 
hazardous of their annual creditable compensation. Participating employers were required to contribute at an actuarially 
determined rate. Per Kentucky Revised Statute Section 61.565(3), normal contribution and past service contribution rates 
shall be determined by the Board on the basis of an annual valuation last preceding the July 1 of a new biennium. The 
Board may amend contribution rates as of the first day of July of the second year of a biennium, if it is determined on the 
basis of subsequent actuarial valuation that amended contribution rates are necessary to satisfy requirements determined in 
accordance with actuarial bases adopted by the Board. For the year ended June 30, 2005, participating employers 
contributed 8% non hazardous and 22.08% hazardous of each employee's creditable compensation. Administrative costs of 
Kentucky Retirement System are financed through employer contributions and investment earnings. 

The required contribution and the actual percentage contributed for the City for the current year and the previous year is as 
follows: 

Required Percentage 
Year 
2005 $238,326 100% 
2004 $199.366 100% 

X. CONTINGENCIES 

X. A. FEDERAL AM) STATE GRANTS 

In the normal course of operations, the City receives grant funds from various Federal and state agencies. The grant 
programs are subject to audit by agents of the granting authorities the purpose of which is to ensure compliance with 
conditions precedent to the granting of funds. Any liability for reimbursement which may arise as the result of these audits 
is believed to be material. 





CITY O F  LAWRENCEBURG, KENTUCKY 
STATEMENT O F  REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

BUDGET AND ACTUALGENERAL FUND 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2005 

Original and Total 
Final Budget Actual Variance 

Propeny taxes 
Insurance oremium axes 
Bank depdsit taxer 
Alcoholic beveiagc faxes 

Total taxes 
Licenses. Permits. and Fees: 

~ icen ies  80.000 123,853 43,853 
Permits 25,000 49,187 24,187 
Franchise fees 180,000 203,227 23,227 

Total licenses, permits, and fees 2 8 5 , r n  37b.2n 
Fines and forfeitures 500 432 
Investment income 2,000 5,348 

yl'!% 3,348 

Charges for services 1,500 900 
Rental income 27,000 30,785 

(600) 
3,785 

Cemetery 2,000 615 
Contributions 104,500 108,388 

0.385) 
3,888 

Intergovernmental programs 1,600 10,624 9,024 
Other 205,650 

Total revenues before prior year fund balance 
Prior year fund balance 2':%$E $%% 188,135 ----+%# 880,743 

Total revenues and piior year fund balance 565,750 3 , b O S . Y ~  1,040,205 

EXPENDITURES AND ENCUMBRANCES 
General government: 

Persoinel services 
Other services and charger 
Suoolier 
~ i $ t a l  outlay 
Debt service 

Total general government 
Street: 

Personnel services 
Other services and charges 
Supplies 
Capital outlay 
Debt service 

Total street 
Fire: 

Pcrrannel services 
Other services and charges 
Supplies 
Capital outlay 
Debt service 

Totabfire 
Police: 

Personnel services 
Othcr services and charges 
Supplies 
Capital outlay 
Debt service 

Total police 
EMS: 

Personnel services 
Mhei services and charges 

Total EMS 
Cemetery: 

Personnel services 
Other services and charges 
Supplies 
Capital outlay 

Total cemetery 
Total Expenditures 
Excess of revenuer over expenditures and encumbrances 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES IUSES) 
Tiansfen from cemetarv m s t  fund 
Transfers to cemetery &st fund 
Capital financing 
Sale of assets 
Total other financing (uses) 

Excess of revenue and other sources 
over expenditures, encumbrances and other uses 

Fund balance, beginolng 
Less budgeted fund balance (I) 
t u n a  balance, enalng 

(I) The General Fund budget includes $300,000 in fund balance. It is not a revenue of the cuiient period, but is presented as revenue only for the budgetary reporting 
purposes. Beginning budgetary fund balance has been reduced for prior year fund balance to reflect the budgetary ending fund balance projected. 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 





CITY OF LAWRENCEBURG, KENTUCKY 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2005 

Pass- 

Federal Through 

CFDA Entity Identifying Federal 

Federal GrantorlPass-Through GrantorProgram or Cluster Title Number Number Expenditures 

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 

Water Management Program 

Construction Granu for Wastewater Treatment Works 

TOTAL U.S. DEPT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 

HOMELAND SECURITY 

Passed Through FEMA-Emergency: 

Preparedness and Response Directoratae 

TOTAL DEPT OF HOMELAND SECURITY 

U.S. DEPT OF JUSTICE 

Passed Through Kentucky Department of Justice: 

Local Law Enforcement Block Grant Program 

TOTAL U.S. DEPT OF JUSTICE 

TOTAL FEDERAL EXPENDITURES OF AWARDS 

See accompanying notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards. 
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CITY OF LAWRENCEBURG, KENTUCKY 
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2005 

NOTE A-BASIS OF PRESENTATION 

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of the City of Lawenceburg, 
Kentucky and is presented on the accrual basis of accounting. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the 
requirements of 0ME3 Circular A-133, Audits of States, LO& Governments, and Non-Profit Org&zizations. Therefore, some amounts 
presented in this schedule may differ kom amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements. 





SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 





CITY OF  I.AWRENCEBL'RG, KENTUCKY 
SCHEDULE OF  FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FOR TIlE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2005 

SUMMARY OF  AUDIT RESULTS 

1. The auditor's report expresses an unqualified opinion on the financial statements of City of Lawrenceburg, 
Kentucky. 

2. No reportable conditions were disclosed during the audit of the fiancial statements of City of Lawrenceburg, 
Kentucky. 

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the fmancial statements of the City of Lawrencebnrg, Kentucky were 
disclosed during the audit. 

4. No reportable conditions in internal control over major federal award programs were disclosed during the audit of 
City of Lawrenceburg. 

5. The auditor's report on compliance for the major federal award programs for City of Lawrenceburg, Kentucky 
expresses an unqualified opinion on all major federal programs. 

6. No audit f i d ' i g s  that are required to be reported in accordance with Section 510(a) of OMB Cicufar !-I33 were 
found. 

7. The program tested as a major program included: APA Construction Grant for Wastewater Treatment Works CFDA 
66.41 8. 

8. The threshold for distinguishing Types A and B programs was $500,000. 
9. City of Lawrenceburg, Kentucky was determined to be a low-risk auditee. 

FINDINGS-FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT 

REPORTABLE CONDITIONS 

None. 

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS-MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT 

None 





INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 

AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 





F A R M E R  & H U M B L E  
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANIS 

P.O. BOX 212 
LAWRENCEBURG, KENTUCKY 40342 

(502) 839-3588 

Honorable Mayor and City Council 
City of Lawrenceburg 
I00 North Main Street 
Lawrenceburg, Kentucky 40342 

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, 
and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Lawrenceburg, Kentucky as of and for the year ended June 
30, 2005, which collectively comprise the City of Lawrenceburg, Kentucky's basic financial statements and have 
issued our report thereon dated September 15, 2005. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. 

1 Over F- 
In planning and performing our audit, we considered City of Lawrenceburg, Kentucky's internal control over 
financial reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the 
financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. Our consideration 
of the internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control over 
financial reporting that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the design or 
operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that 
misstatements caused by error or fraud in amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being 
audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their 
assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control over financial reporting and its operation that 
we consider to be material weaknesses. - 
As Dart of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether City of Lawrencebur~, Kentucky's financial statements are - -~ 
free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulation, 
contracts, and grants agreements, noncompliance. with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions 
was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests 
disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, City Council, and federal awarding 
agencies, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

Farmer & Humble 
Certified Public Accountants 
September 15,2005 





INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS 

APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND 
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLMCE IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133 





F A R M E R  & H U M B L E  
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

P.O. BOX 212 
LAWRENCEBURG, KENTUCKY 40342 

(502) 839-3588 

Honorable Mayor and City Council 
City of Lawrenceburg 
I00 North Main Street 
Lawrenceburg, Kentucky 40342 

We have audited the compliance of City of Lawrenceburg, Kentucky with the types of compliance requirements described 
in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget ( O W )  Circular A-133- that are applicable to each 
of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30,2005. City of Lawrenceburg, Kentucky's major federal program is 
identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 
Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to its major federal program is the 
responsibility of the City of Lawrenceburg, Kentucky's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on City of 
Lawrenceburg, Kentucky's compliance based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of . . 
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A - 1 3 3 , l  

, . -. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a 
direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about 
City of Lawrenceburg, Kentucky's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we 
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit 
does not provide a legal determination on City of Lawrenceburg, Kentucky's compliance with those requirements. 

In our opinion, City of Lawrenceburg, Kentucky, complied, in all material respects, with the requirements refened to above 
that are applicable to its major federal program for the year ended June 30,2005. 

01 Over (2mqhmx 
The management of City of Lawrenceburg, Kentucky, is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal 
control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal programs. In 
planning and performing our audit, we considered City of Lawrenceburg, Kentucky's internal control over compliance with 
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in order to determine our auditing 
procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control over 
compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133. 

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control 
that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a reportable condition in which the design or operation of one or 
more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that noncompliance with 
applicable requirement of laws, regulations, contracts and grants caused by error or fraud that would be material in relation 
to a major federal program being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal 
course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control over compliance and its 
operation that we consider to be material weaknesses. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management City Council, and federal awarding agencies, and 
is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

bzvvYlah,wdJ- 
Farmer & Humble 
Certified Public Accountants 
September 15,2005 
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F A R M E R  & H U M B L E  
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

P. 0. BOX 212 
LAWRENCEBURG, KENTUCKY 40342 

(502) 839-3588 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Honorable Mayor and City Council 
City of Lawenceburg 
205 East Woodford Street 
Lawenceburg, Kentucky 40342 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, e ~ c h  
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Lawrenceburg, as of and for the year ended June 30, 
2004, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These hancial 
statements are the responsibility of the City's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial 
statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
. . 

standards applicable to financial audits contained in v, issued by the Comptroller General of 
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting 
the amounts and disclosures in the hancial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and 
sigruficant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that 
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial 
position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fun4 and the aggregate remaining fund 
information of the City of Lawrenceburg as of June 30,2004, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flo'vs, 
where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounhg principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America 

As described in Note I, the City has implemented a new financial reporting model as required by the provisions of GASB . . 7 .  Statement No. 34, ~, 

The management's discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information are not a required part of the basic 
financial statements but are supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management 
regardmg the methods of measurement and presentation of the supplementary information However, we did not audit the 
information and express no opinion on it. 

. . 
In accordance with -, we have also issued our report dated September 15, 2004, on our 
consideration of City of Lawrenceburg's internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with 
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in . . 
accordance with and should be read in conjunction with this report in considering the 
results of our audit. 





Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the .financial statements that collectively comprise the City of 
Lawrenceburg basic financial statements. The introductoty section, w m b i i g  and individual nonmajor fimd financial 
statements, and additional information are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic 
financial statements. The combi ig  and individual nonmajor fimd .financial statements have been subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements an4 in our opinion, are fairly stated in all material respects in 
relation to the basic &uncial statements taken as a whole. The introductoiy section and has not been subjected to theauditing 
procedures applied in the audit of the basic .financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it. The 
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. 

Nnn-Pr- . . Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, and 
is not a required part of the basic financial statements of City of Lawrenceburg. Such information has been subjected to' the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects, 
in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 

Farmer & Humble 
Lawrenceburg, Kentucky 
September 15,2004 





CITY OF LAWRENCEBURG, KENTUCKY 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

JUNE 30,2004 

The discussion and analysis of the City of Lawrenceburg's financial performance provides an overview and analysis of the City's 
financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30,2004. It should be read in conjunction with the accompanying basic h c i a l  
statements. This discussion and analysis d m  not include comparative data for prior years, as this information is not available for 
the first year of implementation of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement Number 34. Future years will 
include, when available, c o m p d v e  analysis of government-wide data. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

The assets of the City of lawrenceburg exceeded its liabilities at the close of the fiscal year ending June 30, 2004 by 
$13,43 1,353 (net assets). Of this amount, $5,35 1,43 1 (unrestricted net assets) may be used to meet the government's 
ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. 

. The City of Lawrenceburg's total assets increased by $1,174,236 for the year ended June 30,2004. The increase in net 
assets can be attributed to increases in water and sewer rates. 

As of June 30, 2004, the City of Lawrenceburg's governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of 
$1,226,012, an increase of $279,314 in comparison with the prior fiscal year. 

. The total General Fund balance increased $255,237 for the year ended June 30, 2004 and the Fund Balance 
designated for Municipal Aid Road Fund increased $29,548 duringthe same period. 

The City's total debt increased by $0.7 million during the current fiscal year. The City issued $135,000 in capital leases, 
$7.5 million in Revenue Utility Refunding Bonds, and $8.778 million m Waterworks and Sewer System Revenue Bonds. 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The discussion and analysis serves as an introduction to the City of Lawrenceburg's basic financial statements. The City of 
Lawrenceburg's basic financial statements are comprised of three components, government-wide financial statements, fund 
financial statements, and notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to 
the basic hmci i  statements themselves. 

Government-Wide Financial Statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad 
overview of the City of Lawrenceburg's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. The Statement of Net Assets 
presents information on all of the City of Lawrenceburg's assets and liabities, with the difference between the two reported as net 
assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useM indicator of whether the financial position of the City 
of Lawrenceburg is improving or deteriorating. The Statement of Net Assets combines and consolidates governmental funds' 
current financial resources (short-term spendable resources) with capital assets and long-term obligations. Other nonfinancial 
factors should also be taken into consideration, such as changes in the City's property tax base and the condition of the City's 
infrastructure (i.e. roads, drainage improvements, storm and sewer lines, etc.), to assess the overall health or financial condition of 
the City. The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the City's net assets changed during the most recent fiscal 
year. All of the current year's revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of when cash is received or paid. Thus, 
revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that wiU only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., 
earned but not used vacation leave). Both the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities are prepared utilizing the 
accrual basis of accounting as opposed to the modified accrual basis used in prior reporting models. 





In the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities, the City is divided into two kinds of activities: 

Governmental Activities-Most of the Clty's basic services are reported here, including the police, fire, planning and 
development, transportation, parks and recreation, and general administration. Property taxes and insurance premium 
taxes finance most of these activities. 

:. . .  . 

Business Type Activities-The City charges a fee to customers to help it cover all or most of the cost of certain services it 
provides. The City's water and sewer system are reported here. 

Reporting the C i ' s  Most Significant Funds 

Fund Financial Statements 

The fund financial statements provide M e d  information about the most significant funds-not the City as a whole. Some funds 
are required to be established by state law and by bond covenants. However, the City establishes many other funds to help it 
control and manage money for particular purposes or to show that it is meeting legal responsibilities for using certain taxes, grants 
and other money. The C i ' s  two kinds of funds-governmental and proprietary-utilize different accounting approaches. 

Governmental funds-The majority of the C i ' s  basic services are reported in govemmental funds, which focus on how 
money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end that are available for spending. These funds are 
reported using an accounting method identified as the mcdified a c e d  basis of accounting, which measures cash and all 
other financial assets that can readily be converted into cash. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short 
term view of the City's general government operations and the basic services it provides. Governmental fund information 
helps determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near f h r e  to finance the 
City's programs. By comparing information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for 
governmental activities in the government-wide statements, readers may better understand the long term effect of the 
government's near term b c i n g  decisions. The relationships or differences between govemmental activities (reported in 
the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds is detailed in a reconciliation 
following the fund financial statements. 

The City of Lawrenceburg maintains three individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the 
Governmental Funds Balance Sheet and in the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes 
in Fund Balance for the General Fund, Municipal Aid Road Fund and the COPS Grant Funk of which the General Fund 
and Municipal Aid Road Fund are considered to be major funds. 

Proprietary funds-The City charges customers for the saices it provides. These services are generally reported in 
proprietary funds. Propriewy funds are reported in the same way that all activities are reported in the Statement of Net 
assets and the Statement of Activities. In facf the City's enterprise fund (a component of proprietary funds) is identi@ to 
the business type activities that are reported in the government-wide statements but provide more detail and additional 
information, such as cash flows, for proprietary funds. 

The City of Lawrencebwg maintab one individual enterprise fund. The City uses enterprise funds to account for its 
water and sewer. The funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only in 
more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate ixEormation for water and sewer, which is 
considered to he a major fund of the City. 

The City as Trustee 

Reporting the City's Fiduciary Responsibilities 

The City is the trustee, for its Cemetery Trusts. All of the C i ' s  fiduciary activities are reported in separate Statements of 
Fiduciary Net Assets and Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets. The activities of these funds are excluded from the City's govemment- 
wide financial statements because the City cannot use these assets to finance its operations. The City is responsible for ensuring 
that the assets reported in these funds are used for their intended purpose. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements 

The notes provide additional i n f o d o n  that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the govemment-wide and 
fund financial statements. The notes to the .financial statements can be found immediately following the basic Ijnancia.1 statements. 

Other Information 

In addition to the basic &uncial statements and accompanying notes, this report presents certain required supplementary 
information concerning budgetary comparative information for the general fund. 

THE CITY AS A WHOLEGovernment-wide Financial Analysis 

The City's combined net assets were $13,431,353 as of June 30,2004. Analyzing the net assets and net expenses of governmental 
and business-type activities separately, the business type activities net assets are $11,090,732. This analysis focuses on the net 
assets (table 1) and changes in general revenues (table 2) and significant expenses of the City's govemmental and business-type 
activities. 

The largest portion of the C i ' s  net assets (51.3 percent) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildmgs, machinery, 
and equipment), less any related debt used to acquire those assets is sti l l  outstanding. The C i  uses these capital assets to provide 
services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for hture spendmg. Although the City's investment in its capital 
assets is reported net of related deb$ it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided &om other 
sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. 

Table 1 
Summary of Net Assets 

At June 30,2004 

Governmental Business-type Total Primary 
Activities Activities Government 

Current and other assets 
Capital assets 

Total assets 

Long term liabilities outstanding 134,438 796,071 930,509 
Other liabilities 221.806 16.863.216 17.085.022 

Total liabilities 356244 17.659.287 18.015.531 

Net assets: 
Invested in capital assets, 

net of related debt 1,161,567 5,733,121 6,894,688 
Restricted 45,214 1,140,020 1,185,234 
Unrestricted 1,133,840 4.217.591 5,351.431 

Total net assets $ 2.340.621 $ 11.090.732 $ 13,431.353 

Governmental Activities 

The City's general revenues increased when wmpared to the prior year by 5.1 percent or $1 16,496. The primary reason for this 
increase was due to a $45,797 increase in intergovernmental revenue as a result of more additional municipal aid road funds and 
additional grants obtained. Fees also increased $34,557 primarily because of higher revenue h m  building permits and increase in 
occupational licenses. Overall tax revenue increased $30,011. Property tax revenue increased due to increased property valuations 
and the addition of new property throughout the City. The assessed vdue of the property in the City increased by $28.7 million or 
7.3 percent as compared to the prior year while the City property tax rate of $1.829 per $100 assessed valuation decreased 1.1 
percent. 
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Table 2 
General Revenues 

Licenses and permits 
Taxes 
Utility franchise fees 
Intergovernmental revenues 
Other 

Increase 
2004 2003 mecrease) 

$ 136,183 $ 101,626 $ 34,557 

1,658,375 1,628,364 30,011 
187,842 185,815 2,027 
272,954 227,157 45,797 

155,362 151,258 4,104 

Total general revenues % 2.410.716 0 2.294.220 % 116.496 

Governmental and Business type activities increased the City's net assets by $1,174,236. The key elements of this increase are as 
follows: 

Table 3 
Changes in Net Assets 

(Amounts Expressed in Thousands) 

Governmental Business type 

Activities Activities Total 
2004 2004 2004 

Revenues: 

hogram rcvemc 
Charges for sewices $ 126,082 $ 3,653,452 $ 3,779,534 

Ope&g giants and contributions 195,876 195,876 

Capital g r ~ 8  and contributions 33,771 364,179 397,950 

General revenues: 

Taxes 1,658,375 1,658,375 
Utility franchise fcos 187,842 187,842 
Other 266,415 95.485 361.900 

Tatal Revenues 2,468,361 4,113,116 6,581,477 

Expenses: 

General government 

Street 

Fie 
Police 

EMS 

Cemetery 

Interest and kcal charges 

Water and sewer 

Total Expenses 

Increase in net assets before transfers 
Transfers 

Increase in net asseb 

Net Assets, July 1 

Net Assets, June 30 

The most significant governmental expense for the City was in police, which incurred expenses of $1,171,141. These 
expenses were offset by revenues collected from a variety of sources, with the largest being from intergovernmental 
revenues, which are $53,843 for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2004. Police expense of $974,684 was incurred for salary 
and benefits. 





Business-type Activities 

Revenues of the City's business-like activities were $4,113,116 for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2004. Expenses for the 
City's business-type activities were $3,181,103 for the year, resulting in net revenues of $932,013. The net revenues are the 
result of several factors, including the following: 

The City's water and sewer system recorded charges for services of $3,653,452. The water and sewer system 
charges for services of $3,653,452 exceeded expenses of $3,785,679 by $867,773. The most significant expense of 
the water and sewer fund were $642,177 to depreciation and $1,123,567 in salaries and benefits. 

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

Capital Assets 

At the end of the fiscal year 2004, the City had $24,206,702 invested in a broad range of capital assets, includmg police and 
fire equipment, buildings, roads, and water and sewer limes. (See Table 4 below.) This amount represents a net increase 
(including additions and deductions) of $4,002,470 or 20 percent over the prior fiscal year. 

Table 4 
Capital Assets and Yearend 

(Net of Depreciation) 

Governmental Businesstype 

Activities Activities Total 
2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003 

Land $ 113,500 % 113,500 (6 94,570 0 25,570 1 208,070 % 139,070 
Buildings and improvements 768,607 791,913 916,536 954,472 1,685,143 1,746,385 
Equipment 312,235 286,045 381.541 327,107 693,776 613,152 
Comtmctian in progress 809,241 5,284,802 809,241 5,284,802 
I ~ ~ c t u r e  195,975 208,129 195,975 208,129 
Water and sewer system 20.614.497 12,212,694 20,614,497 12,212.694 

Totals % 1,390,317 % 1.399.587 % 22.816.385 % 18,804,645 16 24,206,702 % 20.204.232 

This year's major addition included: 

Plant $ 8,455,142 

The City's fiscal year 2005 capital budget calls for it to spend $9.2 million for capital projects, principally in water and 
sewer. The estimated expenditures for the waster water treatment plant expansion are $7.7 million. The 2005 Capital 
Budget is legally adopted and individual projects are subject to change. 

Debt 

At year-end, the City had $16.6 million in Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds outstanding as compared to $6.2 million at the 
end of the prior fiscal year, an increase of 168 percent as shown in table 5. 

Table 5 
Outstanding Debt 

(Amounts Expressed In Thousands) 

Revenue bonds 





During the current fiscal year the City issued debt in October 2003 and again in April 2004. The new debt resulted primarily from 
the issuance of water and sewer revenue bonds during the current fiscal year in the amount of $8.8 million for the new water plant 
Additionally, the City issued $7.5 million in water and sewer system revenue refunding bonds. 

The City has maintained its AAA rating from Standard and Poor's Corporation. The City also has a Aa3 rating from Moody's 
Investor Service on its outstanding water and sewer revenue bonds. 

THE CITY'S FUNDS 

At the close of the City's fiscal year on June 30,2004, the governmental funds of the City reported a combined fund balance of 
$1,226,012. This ending balance includes an increase in fund balance of $255,237 in the City's General Fund. The primary reason 
for the General Fund's increase is the increase in licenses, permits, and fees and increased intergovernmental revenue. Aiso, the City 
sold a building on Lincoln Street for $56,000. In addition, these other changes in fund balances should be noted: 

The City's water and sewer fund net assets of $11,090,752 million increased by $932,013 over the prior year net asset 
balance. The increase in net assets is primarily due to operating revenues exceeding operating expenses by $867,773. 

Geueral Fund Budgetary Highlights 

During FY 2003-2004, there were no budget amendments for the General Fund 

For FY 2003-2004, actual expenditures on a budgetary basis were $2,141,840 compared to the budget amount of $2,368,299. The 
$226,454 positive variance was due to decreased expenditures in the street and fire departments. 

For FY 2003-2004, actual revenues on a budgetary basis were $2,401,694 as compared to the budget amount of $2,177,475. The 
maToriiy of the $224,219 positive variance was due to an increase in occupational license revenue and franchise fees and the sale of 
the Lincoln Street property. 

The City of Lawrenceburg has an actual on a budgetary basis General Fund balance of $1,180,743 as of the fiscal year end, 
compared to the budgeted fund balance of $209,181. The variance in fund balance is primarily due to conservative budgeting and 
cost containment measures implemented by management. 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES 

The City's elected and appointed officials considered many factors when setting the fiscal year 2005 budget, tax rates, and fees that 
will be charged for the business-type activities. One of these factors is the economy. The National recession has not had significait 
impact on City revenues. The City's population is growing and the demand for City senices is increasing. Additionally, the total 
growth of commercial development bas not kept pace with population growth. These indicators were taken into account when 
adopting the General Fund budget for fiscal year 2005. The total 2004-2005 combined budget appropriation is $2,524,703. This 
represents a slight increase of $156,409 or 6.6 percent wer the 2003-2004 budget. 

The General Fund's largest single revenue source is insurance premium taxes. The insurance premium tax rate for FY 2005 is 6 
percent. Insurance premium tax revenue for FY 2005 is budgeted at $770,000. The General Fund's property tax revenue for FY 2005 
is estimated to be $730,000. 

The largest revenue source for the water and sewer fund is water sales, estimated at $1,080,000. The rate for FY 2005 is 5.125-2.90 
per 1,000 gallons, and incorporates the cost of water treatment, distribution and maintenance costs. This rate is unchanged from last 
year. The second largest revenue source for the water and sewer fund is sewer charges, estimated at $810,000 based on a FY 2005 
rate of 2.8-2.49 per 1,000 gallons. This rate is also unchanged from the previous fiscal year. 

CONTACTING THE CITY'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors and creditors with a general overview of 
the City's finances and to show the City's accountability for the money it receives. If you have questions about this report or need 
additional financial information, contact the Finance Department at the City of Lawrenceburg, 205 East Woodford Street, 
Lawrenceburg KY 40342. 





CITY OF LAWRENCEBURG, KENTUCKY 
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 

JUNJi 30,2004 

ASSETS 
Cash 
Investments 
Accounts receivable, net 
Accrued interest receivable 
Notes receivable, net 
Prepaids 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 
Restricted investmetns 
Unamortized debt issuance costs 
Capital assets, net: 

Nondepreciable 
Depreciable 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable 
Accrued liabilities 
Due to cemetery trust 
Payable from restricted assets: 

Accounts payable 
Retainage payable 
Accrued interest 
Notes and revenue bonds payable, current 
Deposits 

Noncnrrent liabilities: 
Due within one year 

Capital lease obligation 
Due in more than one year 

Accrued compensated absences 
Capital lease obligation 
Notes and revenue bonds 

Total Liabilities 

NET ASSETS 
Investmented capital assets, net of related debt 
Restricted for: 

Debt service 
Capital projects 
Other purposes 

Unrestricted 
Total net assets 

Governmental 
Activities 

Business-type 
Activities Totals 

See accompanying notes to fmancial statements. 
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CITY OF LAWRENCEBURG, KENTUCKY 
BALANCE SHEET 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
AS OF JUNE 30,2004 

ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Receivables (net of allowance for uncalleetibles) 

Taxes 

Franchise foes 

Intorgov-ental 

Other 

Notes receivable 

Prepaid expenditures 

Total Assee 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

Lisbllties: 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 

Due to other %ads 

Total Liabilities 

l h d  Balances: 

Reserved for prepaids 

Reserved for street maintenance 

Unreserved: 

Undcsignate4 reported in General Fund 

Special revenue funds 

Total Fund Balances 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 

Municipal Total 

Aid COPS Governmental 

General Road Grant Funds 

See accompanyingnotn to fiancial statements. 





CITY OF LAWRENCEBURG, KENTUCKY 
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 
OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE BALANCE SHEET 

AS OF JUNE 30,2004 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets 
are different because: 

Total fund balance per balance sheet $ 1,226,012 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, 1,390,3 17 
therefore, are not reported in the funds. 

Long-term liabilities, including capital leases and compensated absences, 
are not due and payable in the current period and therefore, are not reported 
in the funds. (275,708) 

Net assets of govemental activities 





CITY OF LAWRENCEBURG, KENTUCKY 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2004 

Municipal Other Total 
Aid Nonmajor Governmental 

General Road Funds Funds 

REVENUES 
Properly taxes 
Licenes and permits 
Franchise fees 
Fines and forfeitures 
Rents 
Service charges 
Interest revenue 
Other tawes 
Cemetery 
Contributions 
Intergovernmental revenues 
Other 

Total Revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Current- 

General government 
Street 
Fire 
Police 
EMS 
Cemetely 
Capital Outlay 

Debt service- 
Principal retirement 
Interest 

Total Expenditures 
Excess (deficiency) of revenues 

over expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Capital lease 
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 

Total Other Financing Sources and Uses 
Net Change in Fund Balances 

Fund Balances, July 1 
Fund Balances, June 30 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 





CXTY OF LAWRENCEBURG, KENTUCKY 
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES 

EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTMTIES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SUNE 30,2004 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities 
are Merent because: 

Net change in fund balance-total govemmental funds 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the 
statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated 
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which 
depreciation exceeded capital outlay in the current period (Note 11. B.) 

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds leases) provides current financial 
resources to governmental funds, while repayment of the principal of long-term 
debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither 
transaction, however, has any effect on net assets. Also, governmental funds 
report the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and similar items when 
debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the 
statement of activities. This amount is the net effect of these differences in the 
treatment of long-erm debt and related items. (Note U. B.) 

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of 
a current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in 
govemmental funds. (Note II. B.) 

Change in net assets of govemmental activities 







ASSETS 
Current Assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 
Accounts receivable, net 
Accrued interest receivable 
Prepaids 

Total current assets 

Restricted assets.. 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 

Total restricted assets 
Unamortized debt issuance costs 

CITY OF LAWRENCEBURG, KENTUCKY 
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 

PROPRIETARY rn 
JUNJ?. 30,2004 

Water and 
Sewer 

Capital assets: 
Land 
Buildings, shuchues and improvements 
utility plant 
Machinery and equipment 
Consauction in progress 

Less accumulated depreciation 
Capital assets, net 

Total assets 



Water and 
Sewer 

LIABILITIES 
Current Liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
Accrued liabilities 
Capital lease obligation, current 

Total Current Liabilities 

Current Liabilities Payable From Restricted Assets: 
Accounts payable 
Retainage 
Accrued interest 
Notes and revenue bonds payable, current 
Deposits 

Total Current Liabilities Payable From Restricted Assets 

Noncurrent Liabilities 
Compensated absences 
Capital leases payble 
Notes and revenue bonds 

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

NET ASSETS 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 
Restricted for: 

Debt service 
Capital projects 

Unrestricted 
Total net assets 

See accompanying notes to fmancial statements. 





CITY OF LAWRENCEBURG, KENTUCKY 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN 

FUND NET ASSETS-PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2004 

Enterprise 
Water and Sewer 

Operating Revenues 
Charges for services 
Other 

Total Operating Revenues 

Operating Expenses 
Personnel senices 
Materials and supplies 
Maintenance and repairs 
Transportation and training 
Utilities 
Insurance 
Rent 
Legal and professional 
Depreciation 
Other 
River Authority Fee 

Total Operating Expenses 

Operating Income 

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 
Intergovenunental revenues 
Investment revenue 
Interest expense and fiscal charges 

Net Nonoperating Revenue 

Change in Net Assets 

Total Net Assets, July 1 

Total Net Assets, June 30 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 





CITY OF LAWRENCEBURG, KENTUCKY 
STATEMENT OF CASII FLOWS-PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2004 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Cash received from customers 
Cash payments to suppliers 
Cash payments to employees 
Net cash provided by operating activities 

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities: 
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (5,798,523) 
Principal payments on capital lease (29,237) 
Interest payments on capital lease (18,635) 
Proceeds from capital lease 62,500 
Customer deposits 11,782 
Governmental grants 364,179 
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 15,947,797 
Repayment of long-term debt (14,847,866) 
Interest and fiscal charges (530,527) 
Net cash provided by capital and related financing activities (4,838,530) 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Proceeds from interest earnings 87,075 
Purchase of investments (500,000) 
Maturieslsales of investments 5,031,798 
Net cash provided by investing activities 4,618,873 

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 1,059,812 

Cash and cash equivalents at July 1 
Cash and cash equivalents at June 30 

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash 
provided by operating activities: 

Operating Income 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income 

to net cash provided by operating activities: 
Depreciation 

Increase (decrease) in- 
Receivables 
Prepaids 

Increase (decrease) in- 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
Accrued compensated absencesq 

Total adjustments 
Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 





ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 

Due from general fund 
Interest and dividends receivable 
Investments 

Total Assets 

NET ASSETS 
Held in trust for cemetery maintemce 

CITY OF LAWRENCEBURG, KENTUCKY 
STATEMENT OF FJDUCIARY NET ASSETS 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2004 

Cemetery Trust 
Funds 





CITY OF LAWRENCEBURG, KENTUCKY 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2004 

ADDITIONS 
Transfers from general fund $ 12,267 
Investment Earnings: 

Net Gain in the Fair Value of Investments 6,510 
Interest and Dividends 9,513 

Total Additions $ 28,290 

DEDUCTIONS 
Transfers to general fund 
Administrative expenses 

Total Deductions 

Change in Net Assets $ 18,907 
Held in Trust for Cemetery Maintenance: 

Net Assets at Beginning of Year 269,572 
Net Assets at End of Year $ 288,479 





CITY OF LAWRENCEBURG, KENTUCKY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30,2004 

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The City of Lawrenceburg, Kentucky (the "Cay"') operates under an elected the mayor and City Council and provides the 
following services to the citizens of the City: public safety (police and fire), cemetery, street, EMS, water and sewer utilities, and . . 
general admmtrative services. 

The m-ompanying financial statements of the City includes all funds and component units 

The financial statements of the City have been prepared to conform to generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as 
applicable to state and local govemments. The governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard for 
establishing govemmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more significant accounting and reporting policies 
and practices used by the City are described below. 

In fiscal year 2004, the City adopted three new statements of financial accounting standards and one new interpretation issued by 
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB): 

Statement No. 34: Basic Financial Statements-and Management's Discussion and Analysisrfor State and Local 
Governments 

Statement No. 37: Basic Financial Statements-and Management's Discussion and Analysis-for State and Local 

. -. Governments: Omnibus 
.,. 

Statement No. 38: Certain Financial Statement Disclosures 

Interpretation No. 6: Recognrgnrtion and Measurements of Certain Liabilities & Expendifures in Governmental Fund 
Financial Statements. 

Statement No. 34 (as amended by Statement No. 37) represents a very significant change in the financial reporting model used by 
state and local governments. 

Statement No. 34 reqikes government-wide financial statements to be prepared using the accrual basis of accounting and the 
economic resources measurement focus. Government-wide financial statements do not provide idormation by fund or account 
group, but distinguish between the City's govemmental activities, business-type activities, and activities of its discretely presented 
component units on the statement of net assets and statement of activities. Signjficantly, the City's S m e n t  of net assets includes 
both noncurrent assets and noncurrent liabilities of the City, which were previously recorded in the General Fixed Assets Account 
Group and the General Long-term Debt Account Group. 

The City's implementation of these standards had the foUowing effect on the City's financial statements: 

The City has historically capitalized all capital assets in the proprietaiy fimd, but not the general fund. The City also has 
not recorded annual depreciation expense or the related accumulated depreciation in the general fund. As of July 1,2003, 
the City recorded capital assets of $1,916,921 and recognized $517,334 in accumulated depreciation on all governmental 
activity assets that had not previously been recognized. 

Certain liabilities related to compensated absences and capital leases had not previously been recognized w i t h  the 
City's general fund. 





A table sunmmkhg these changes follows: 

General Municipal COPS 
Fund Aid Road Grant 

Fund balance, beginning of year, as previously reported $ 925,506 $ 15,666 $ 5,526 
Compensated absences, accrual (49,840) 
Record capital assets 1,185,471 214,117 
Record capital leases 1198.048) 
Net assets, beginning of year, as restated $ 1.863.089 $ 229.783 $ 5.526 

In addition to the govemmeut-wide financial statements, the City has prepared fund financial statements, which continue to use 
the m d e d  accrual basis of accounting and the current financial resources measurement focus. The accrual basis of accounting 
is utilized by proprietary fund types. Under this method, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time 
liabilities re incurred. Accordmgly, the accounting and financial reporting of the City's General Fund, Municipal Aid Road Fund 
Capital Projects Fund and COPS Grant Fund is similar to that previously presented in the City's financial statements, although 
the format of financial statements has been modified by Statement No. 34 to focus on major funds, as opposed to presenting fund 
types. 

Statement No. 34 also requires c e h ~  required supplementary information in the form of Management's Discussion and Analysis 
which includes an analytical overview of the City's financial activities. In addition, a budgetary comparison statement is presented 
that compares the adopted and m d e d  General Fund budget with actual results. 

Statement No. 37 amends GASB Statements NO. 21 and No. 34. The amendments to Statement 21 are necessary because of the 
changes to the fiduciary fund structure required by Statement 34. Generally, escheat property that was reported in an expendable 
trust fund in the previous model should be reported in a private purpose trust fund under Statement 34. Additionally, the 
amendments either (1) clan@ certain provisions that, in retrospq may not be sufficiently clear for consistent application or (2) 
mod@ other provisions that the GASB Board believes may Eive ui,kten&d consequences il some cirm%~ces. This hisemeEt 
became effective for the City iffiscal year 2004. 

GASB has issued Statement No. 38, Certain Financial Sfafemenf Note Disclosu~es which modifies, establishes and rescinds 
certain financial statement disclosure requirements. This statement has become effective to the City in fiscal year 2004. 

Interpretation 6 is an interpretation of NCGA Statements 1,4, and 5; NCGA Interpretation 8; and GASB StatementNos. 10,16, 
and 18. It clarifies the existing modified accrual standards for disthguishmg the portion of a liabiity that should be reported as a 
governmental fund liabiity/expenditure from the portion that should be reported as a general long-term liab'ity (i.e., govemment- 
wide reporting only). 

The City is governed by an elected major and six-member council. As required by generally accepted accounting principles, these 
financial statements present the City (the primary govemment) and its component units, entities for which the govemmint is 
considered to be financially accountable. 

Component units are organizations for which the C i  is financially accountable and all other organizations for which the nature 
and significance of their relationship with the City are such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity's financial statements 
to be misleading or incomplete. F i i c i a l  accountability exists if the City appoints a voting majority of an organization's 
goveming board and is either able to impose its will on that organization or there is a potential for the organization to provide 
speci6c financial benefits to, or impose speci6c h c i a l  burdens on, the City. The City may be financially accountable for 
governmental organizations with a separately elected goveming board, a goveming board appointed by another government, or a 
jointly appointed board that is fiscally dependent on the City. The financial statements of the component units may be discretely 
presented in a separate calm from the primary govemment or blended with the 6nancial statements of the primary govemment. 
For fiscal year 2004, the City has no component units. 





The basic financial statements include both government-wide (based on the City as a whole) and fund financial statements. The 
govenunent-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assts and the statement of activities) report information on all of 
the non-fiduciary activities of the primary government and its component units. For the most part, the effect of inter-fund activity 
has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental 
revenues, are reported separately fiom business-type activities, which rely on a si@cant extent of fees and charges for support. 
The previous reporting model emphasized fund types (the total of al l  funds of a particular type), in the new reportingmodel as 
defined by GASB Statement No. 34 the focus is either the City as a whole or major individual funds (within the fund finan'al 
statements). 

The government-wide statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a functional category (Public 
Safety, Street, etc.) or activity are offset by program revenues. Diect expenses are those that are clearly identifable with specific 
function or activity. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applications who purchase, use, or directly benefit from 
goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or activiiy, 2) grants and contributions that are reshicted to meeting the 
operational requirements of a particular function or activity an 3) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the 
capital requirements of a particular function or activity. Taxw and other items not properly included among program revenues 
are reported instead as general revenues. 

The net cost (by function or business-type activity) is normally covered by general revenue (property, hnchise taxes, 
intergovernmental revenues, interest income, etc.). 

Separate fund based financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even 
though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual govemmental funds and major 
individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. The major governmental funds are 
the general fund, and municipal aid road fund. GASB Statement No. 34 sets forth minimum criteria (percentage of assets, 
liabilities, revenues or expenditures/expenses of either fund category for the governmental and enterprise combined) for the 
determination of major funds. The only nomajor fund is the COPS grant fund which is in a column in the fund financial 
statements. 

The City's fiduciary fUnds (which have been refined and narrowed in scope) are presented in the fund financial statements by 
type. Since by dehition these assets are being held for the benefit of a third party (cemetery) and cannot be used to address 
activities or obligations of the governmen6 these funds are not incorporated into the government-wide statements. 

The government-wide focus is more on the sustahbiity of the City as an entity and the change in aggregate financial position 
resulting from the activities of the fiscal period. The focus of the fund financial statements is on the major individual funds of the 
governmental and business-type categories, as well as the fiduciary funds, (by category). Each presentation provides valuable 
information that can be analyzed and compared to enhance the usefulness of the information. 

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of 
accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are 
recorded when a liability is incum4 regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in 
the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recogruzed as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements have 
been met. 

Govemment fund level financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the 
modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are 
considered to be available when they are collected within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the 
current period. For this purpose, the government considers revenue to be available ifthey are collected within 60 days of the end 
of the fiscal period. Grant revenues availability period is generally considered to be one year. Expenditures generally are recorded 
when a liabilrty is incurre4 as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to 
compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when the liability has matured and payment is due. 





Ad valorem, franchise and insurance premium tax revenues in the General Fund are recognized under the susceptible to accrual 
concept. Licenses and permits, charges for services, fines and forfeitures, contributions, and miscellaneous revenues are recorded 
as revenues when received in cash as the resulting receivable is immaterial. Investment earnings are recorded as earned since they 
are measurable and available. In applying the susceptible to accrual concept to intergovernmental revenues, the legal and 
contraetual requirements of the numerous individual programs are used as guidance. There are, however, essentiaUy two types of 
these revenues. In one, monies must be expended for the specific purpose of expenditures recorded. In the other, monies are 
vh@y unrestricted as to purpose of expenditure and are usually revocable only for failure to comply with prescribed 
compbance requirements. These resources are reflected as revenues at the time of receipt or earlier if the susceptible to accrual 
criteria are met. 

Business type aetivities and all proprietary funds are accounted for on a flow of economic resources measmment focus. With 
this measurement focus, all assets and all liabiities associated with the operation of these funds are included on the balance sheet. 
Proprietary fund-type operating statements present increases (e.g., revenues) and decreases (e.g., expenses) in net total assets. 
Proprietary funds dstingu~sh operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues and expenses 
generally result f?om providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal 
ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the City's water and sewer fund are charges to customers for sales and 
services. Operating expenses for the enterprise h d s  include the cost of sales and s e ~ c e s ,  administrative expenses, ,ad 
depreciation on capital assets. AU revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and 
expenses. 

The following major funds are used by the City: 

1. Governmental Funds: 

The following is a description of the Governmental Funds of the City: 

a. General Fund accounts for several of the City's primary services (Public Safety, Street, EMS, and Cemetery) 
and is the primary operating unit of the City. 

b. Municipal Aid Road Fund accounts for the state revenue received for street repairs and mainkname. 
c. COPS Grant Fund is a nonmajor governmental fund. 

2. Proprietary Funds: 

The following is a description of the Proprietary Funds of the City: 

a. Water and Sewer Funcl accounts for the operation of the City's water and sewer u w .  Activities of the fimd 
include administration, operation and maintenance of the water and sewer system and billing and collection 
activities. The Fund also accounts for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment oS long-term debt 
principal and interest for revenue bonds and obligations under capital leases when due throughout the year. AU 
costs are haneed through charges made to utility customers with rates reviewed regularly and adjusted if 
necessary to ensure integrity of the Fund. 

3. Other Fund Types: 

The City additionally reports for the following Fund: 

a. Cemetery Trust Fund is used to account for the aecumulation of resources to be used for the maintenance and 
perpetual care of the Lawreneeburg Cemetery. 

4. Non-Current Governmental AssetsIL'iabilities: 

GASB Statement No. 34 eliminates the presentation of Account Groups, but provides for these records to be maintained and 
incorporates the information into the Governmental Activities column in the government-wide Statement of Net Assets. 





Cash and cash equivalents include cash on han4 amounts in demand deposits, and short-term investments with a maturity date 
within three months of the date acquired by the City. 

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid items in both 
govemment-wide and fund financial statements. 

Property, plant and equipment purchased or acquired is carried at historical cost or estimated historical cost. Contributed ftxed 
assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the time received. Public domain ( ' i c t u r e )  ftxed assets consisting of 
roads, curbs and gutters, streets and sidewalks, drainage systems and lighting systems have been recorded at estimated historical 
cost. Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $500 and an estimated 
useful life in excess of one year. 

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are construdled. Interest incurred during the 
construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included as part of the capitalized value of the assets constructed. 
Net revenue bond interest cost incurred during construction periods is capitalized when material. 

Property, plant, and equipment of the primary governen4 as well as the component units, is depreciated using the straight line 
methd over the following estimated usehl lives: 

Bssets YeaLE 
Buildings 40 
Improvements other than buildings 50 
Equipment 5-15 
Meters 20 
Utility plant 10-50 
System i d m t w b r e  20 

In conformity with Financial Accounting Standards No. 34, "Capitalization of Interest Cost," the City capitalizes interest costs 
for business-type activities only, net of related interest earned, from the date of the borrowing until the projects acquired uith 
those funds are ready for their intended use. 

The City's employees earn vacation leave for each year of work performed. The accrual rate increases with yeas of service up to 
20 days per year for 12 years of service and over. On specified anniversary dates, additional days are credit& up to certain 
amounts, according to length of service. Accrued vacation is paid to the employees upon termination of employment 

The City's employees accumulate one day of sick leave per month with no maximum accrual. No amount accumulated is paid 
upofi termination of employment. 

Accumulated vacation is accrued when incurred in the govemment-wide and proprietary fund financial statements. A liability for 
these amounts is reported in governmental funds only ifthey have matured, for example, as a result of employee resignations and 
retirements. 

In the fund financial statements, govemmental funds report resenations of fund balance for amounts that are not available for 
appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties for use for a specific purpose. Designations of fund balance represent 
tentative management plans that are subject to change. 
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11. RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balance-total governmental funds and net assets- 
governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of net assets. One element of that reconcWon explains the 
"long-term liabilities, including bands payable, are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in the 
funds." The details ofthis $275,708 difference are as follows (amounts in thousands): 

Capital leases payable 
Compensated absences 

Net adjustment to reduce fund balance-total governmental funds 
To arrive at net assets-governmental activities $ 275.708 

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fUnd balances include a reconciliation between net 
changes in fund balances-total governmental funds and changes in net assets of govemmental activities as reported in the 
government-wide statement of activities. One element of that reconciliation explains, "Governmental funds report capital outlays 
as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities the cost of those assets is capitalized and allocated over their estimated 
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense." The details of the $9,270 difference are as follows: 

Capital outlay 
Depreciation expense 

Net adjustment to increase net changes in fund 
balances total governmental funds to arrive at 
changes in net assets of governmental activities 1$ 19,270) 

Another element of that reconciliation states "The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, leases) provides current 6nancid 
resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources 
of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net assets. AIso, governmental funds report the effect of 
issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and 
amortized in the statement of activities." The details of this $30,703 difference are as follows: ! j 

i'ebt issued or incurred: 
Issuance of capital lease 

Principal payments: 
Capital leases 

Net adjustment to increase net changes in fund balaaces- 
total govemmental funds to arrive at changes in net 
assets of governmental activities $ (30,7031 

Another element of that reconciliation states: "Some expenses reported in the merit of activities do not require the use of 
current financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds." The details of this $2,882 
difference are as follows: 

Compensated absences $2,882 





111. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS 

1. Deposits and Investments 

Deposits-The City's deposits were fdly insured or wllatexaked as required at June 30,2004. At yearend, the canying amount 
of the City's demand deposits was $4,209,812 (bank balance $4,297,429). The bank balance was covered by collateral with a 
fair value of $12,267,926. The collateral is held by various banks in the City's name. (Category 2Collatexaked with securities 
held by the pledging financial institution's agent in the City's name). 

Investments-Investments outside of the cemetery trust funds consist of certificates of deposit. Category 1 includes investments 
that are insured or registered for which the securities are held by the City or its agent in the City's name. Category 2 includes 
investments that are uninsured and unregistered, or for which securities are held by the counterpart's trust department or agent in 
the entity's name. Category 3 includes investments that are uninsured an unregistered, or for which the securities are held by the 
counterpart, or by its trust dqmtment or agent but not in the entity's name. 

The City's deposits and investments carried at E?ir value as of June 30,2004 are: 

Category Fair 
of Risk Value 

Tnvefitmentn 
Treasury Notes (1) $ 15,707 
Federal Home Loan Bank Notes (1) 15,448 
Freddie Mac Notes (1) 23.351 

54,506 

nsits 
Demand Deposits (all bank accounts) (1) 400,294 
Certificates of Deposit (2) 3,632,393 
Certificates of Deposit (3) 177,132 
Certiftcates of Deposit (1) 100,000 
Certificates of Deposit (2) 1,189,059 
Certificates of Deposit (3) 383.564 

5,882,442 

Trust Fund Investments NIA 234.939 

Total Investments and Deposits $ 6,171.887 

A reconciliation of cash and investments as shown on the Statement of Net Assets for the City follows (amounts in thousands): 

Primary Fiduciary 
Government Funds 

Canying Amount of Deposits $ 5,882,434 $ 8 
Carrying Amount of Investments 7.649 281,796 

$ 5,890.083 $ 281.804 

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 4,217,460 $ 8 
Investments 1,206,623 281,796 
Invesunents-Restricted 466.000 

$ 5.890.083 $ 281,804 





2. Property Taxes 

Property Taxes are levied on October 1 on the assessed value listed as of the prior January 1 and are due and payable at that 
time. All unpaid taxes attach as a lien on property as of January 1 and become enforceable February 1. Penalty and interest is 
charged at 12 percent on delinquent taxes beginning January 1. 

Appraised values are established by the Anderson County PVA at 100 percent of estimated market value. The assessed value for 
the tax roll of January 1,2003, upon which the ori@ 2004 levy was based, was $423,023,5 17. 

Current year revenues recognized are those collected w i t h  the current period, or soon enoughthereafter to pay current liabilities, 
generally wi& sixty days &r yearend. An allowance is provided for delinquent personal property taxes not expected to be 
collected in the W e .  

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004, the City had a tax rate of S.1829 per $100 valuation-real property, s.02839 personal 
property, and $.229 vehicle tax. 

3. Receivables 

Receivables at June 30, 2004 for the govexnment's individual major funds and nonmajor, and fiduciary funds in the aggregate, 
including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, consist of the following: 

Receivables: 
Taxes 
Trade Accounts 
Unbilled Trade Accounts 
Reimbursements 
Intergovernmental 
?emits 
Other 

Water & 
General Sewer Total 

Gross Receivables 214,224 534,416 748,640 
Less: Allowance for Uncollectibles (51.977) (51.9771 
Net Total Receivables $ 214.224 $ 482.439 $ 696,663 





4. Capital Assets 

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30,2004 was as foUows: 

Balance at Transfers Transfers Balance at 
Besinning And And End 

Of Year Additions Retirements Of Year 
Governmental activities: 
Capital assets, not being depreciated: 
Land 

Capital assets, being depreciated: 
Buildings 
Improvements 
Equipment 
Infrastructure 
Total capital assets being depreciated 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Buildings 
Improvements 
Equipment 
Infrastructure 
Total accnmnlated depreciation 

Total capital assets, being 
depreciated, net 

Governmental activities capital assets, net 

Water and sewer activities: 
Capital assets, not being depreciated: 
Land 
Construction in progress 
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 

Capital assets, being depreciated: 
Buildings and improvements 
Water and sewer system 
Machinery and equipment 
Total capital assets, being depreciated 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Buildings and improvements 
Water and sewer system 
Machinery and equipment 
Total accumulated depreciation 
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 

Water and sewer activities capital assets, net 

Balance at Transfers Transfers Balance at 
Beginning And And End 
Of Year Additions Retirements Of Year 





Depreciation expense was cbarged to f u n c t i o n s l p r o ~  of the primary government as follows: 

Governmental Activities: 
General Government $ 26,880 
Street 39,586 
Police 41,841 
Fire 24,683 
Cemetery 8.144 

Total depreciation expense-governmental activities $ 141,134 

Business-type activities: 
Water and sewer % 642.177 

Total depreciation expense-business-type activities $ 642,177 

The City uses the stmight-line depreciation method for property, plant and equipment based on the following estimated useful 
lives by major class of depreciable fixed assets: 

Illass 
Buildings and improvements 7 Y- 
Machinery and equipment 5 years 
Water and sewer systems 1050 years 
Jdktructure 15-20 years 

IV. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

County Employees Retirement System (CER$) 

City employees who work at least 100 hours per month participate in the County Employees Retirement System (CERS). Under 
the provisions of Kentucky Revised State 61.645, the Board of Trustees of Kentucky Retirement Systems admjnisters the CERS. 

The plan issues separate financial statements which may be obtained by request kom Kentucky Retirement Systems, 1260 
Louisville Road, Frankfort, Kentucky 40601. 

Plan Description-CERS is a cost-sbaring multiple+mployer defined benefit pension plan that covers substantially all regular full- 
time members employed in positions of each county and school board, and any additional eligible local agencies electing to 
participate in the System. The plan provides for retirement, disab'i ,  and death benefits to plan members. Retirement benefits 
may be extended to beneficiaries of plan members under certain circumstances. Cost-of-living (COLA) adjustments are provided 
at the discretion of the state legislature. 

Contributions-For the year ended June 30,2004, plan members were requiredto contribute 5% non-hazardous and 7% hazardous 
of their annual creditable compensation. Participating employers were required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. Per 
Kentucky Revised Statute Section 61.565(3), normal contribution and past service contribution rates shall be determined by the 
Board on the basis of an a n n d  valuation last precedmg the July 1 of a new biennium. The Board may amend contribution rates 
as of the first day of July of the second year of a bi&um, if it is determined on the basis of subsequent actuasial valuation that 
amended contribution rates are necessary to satisfy requirements determined in accordance with actuarial bases adopted by the 
Board. For the year ended June 30,2004, participating employers contributed 7.34 nonhazardous and 18.51 hazardous of each 
employee's creditable compensation. Administrative costs of Kentucky Retirement System are financed through employer 
contributions and investment earnings. 

The required contribution and the actual percentage contributed for the City for the current year and the previous year is as 
follows: 

Required Percentage 
Year 
2004 $199,366 100% 
2003 $169,354 100% 
2002 $158,487 100% 





V. LONGTEFW DEBT 

General long-term debt balances and transactions for the year ended June 30,2004 are as follows (amounts in thousands): 

Balance Balance Due 
July 1, Retirements June 30, Within 
2003 Additions and Other 2004 One Year 

Capital lease obligations $ 198,047 $ 72,500 $ (41,797) $ 228,750 $ 53,902 
Accrued compensated absences 49.840 1.983 (4.865) 46.958 

Total $ 247.887 $ 74.483 % (46.662) $ 275,708 $ 53.902 

The principal and interest requirements of the above capital lease obligation debt at June 30,2004 are as follows: 

Fiscal Year Princinal 
2005 $ 53,902 
2006 56,280 
2007 45,317 
2008 27,026 
2009 19,025 

2010-2012 27.200 

$ 228.750 

Interest Total 
$ 9,247 $ 63,149 

6,978 63,258 
4,597 49,914 
2,856 29,882 
2,097 21,122 
3.186 30.386 

$ 28,961 $ 257.71 1 

Accrued compensated absences for the general funds will be paid out of the general fund as those liabilities become due. 

The City issued $8,778,000 of Water and Wastewater System Revenue Bonds, Series 2004, during 2004 at an interest rate of 
4.375% and are scheduled to mature serially from 2005 to 2043. The bond proceeds were used to c o m l ~ c t  a new water plant. 
The City also issued $7,500,000 of Revenue Uthty Refunding Bonds, Series 2003, during 2004 with an interest rate of 2.5%-5% 
and are scheduledto mature serially from 2005 to 2028. 

.The revenue bonds of the Enterprise Funds are payable from operations of the Water and Sewer Fund. The bonds mature 
annually in varying amounts through iiscal year 2043, and interest is payable semiannually at rates ranging &om 2.5%5.375%. 
Debt balances and transactions for the year ended June 30,2004 are as follows: 

Balance 

July 1, 

2003 

Acmed compensated absences $ 55,160 

Capital lease obligations 422,435 

Waterworks and Sewer System Revenue Bonds 2,73 1,930 

Bond Antioipation Notes 12,425,000 

KIA Note 40.502 

Total h 15,675.027 

Balance 

Retuements June 30, 

Additions and Other 2004 

$ 7,645 $ $ 62,805 

62,500 (29,239) 455,696 

16,278,000 (2,417,930) 16,592,000 

(12,425,000) 

(4.934) 35.568 

$ 16,348,145 $ (14.877.103) $ 17.146.069 

Due 

Within 

One Year 

$ 

37,659 

240,000 

The revenue bonds are collateralized by the revenue ofthe water and sewer system and assets of various special funds established 
by the bond ordinances. The ordinances provide that the revenue of the system is first to be used to pay operating and 
maintenance expenses of the system and secondly to establish and maintain the special funds. Any remaking revenues may then 
be used for any l a ~ l  purpose. The ordinances also contain provisions, which restrict the issuance of additional revenue bonds 
unless the special funds nded above contain the required amounts calculated in accordance with provisions of the existing bond 
ordinances and certain financial ratios are met. 





The parity standards of the bond ordinance require net revenues, as defined in the ordinance, to exceed 1.3 times the 
maximum annual debt service requirements. Net revenues for the year were $1,605,425, and the amount required by the 
bond ordinances was $1,417,544. The net revenues equal 1.5 times the maximum annual principal and interest 
requirements for outstanding bonds for fiscal year 2004. 

Accrued compensated absences for the enterprise fund will be paid out of the water and sewer fund as the liabilities become due 

The principal and interest requirement at June 30,2004, for the enterprise fund debt (excludmg accrued compensated absences) 
for the next five years and, thereafter, are as follows: 

Fiscal Year 
2005 
2006 
2007 
2008 
2009 

2010-2014 
. ; . 2015-2019 

2020-2024 
2025-2029 
2030-2034 
2035-2039 
2040-2043 

Princi~al Interest Total 
$ 282,853 $ 715,059 $ 997,912 

425,929 705,767 1,131,696 
430,401 705,554 1,135,955 
441,089 692,422 1,133,511 
452,279 678,100 1,130,379 

1,798,713 3,180,138 4,978,851 
2,251,000 2,759,242 5,010,242 
2,601,000 2,209,595 4,810,595 
3,247,000 1,530,761 4,777,761 
1,452,000 974,53 1 2,426,531 
1,853,000 614,884 2,467,884 
1.848.000 166.863 2.014.863 

% 17.083.264 $ 14.932.916 % 32.016.180 

VI. INTElGVNll TRANSACTIONS 

A summary of interfund receivables and payables at June 30,2004 is as follows: 

Interfund Interfund 
Eund Receivables Pavables 
General Fund $ $ 5,923 
Cemetery Trust Fund 5.923 

2 5,923 $ 5.923 

The General Fund Payable represents twenty percent of quarterly cemetery lot sales. 

Transfers between funds during the year were as follows: 

Transfers Out Transfers In 
Major Governmental Funds: 

General Fund $ 12,267 $ 7,650 

Fiduciary Funds: 
Cemetery Trust 

Total All Funds 

The General Fund transferred $12,267 to Cemetery Trust Fund, as required representing twenty percent of cemetery sales. The 
Cemetery Trust Fund transferred $7,650 to General Fund, reflecting transfer of fund income for cemetery perpetual care. 





VII. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

The City receives federal and state grants for specific purposes that are subject to review and audit by the grantor agencies. Such 
audits could lead to requests for reimbursement to the grantor agency for expenditures disallowed under terms of the grant. City 
management believes such disallowances, if any, would be insi@cant 

The City has active construction projects as of June 30,2004. The projects include the construction of water and sewer facilities. 
At year end the City's commitments with contractors are as follows: 

Remaining 
W r t 
Wastewater Treatment Plant $49 1,099 $7,082,000 

The wastewater treatment plant construction project is funded by revenue bond proceeds and cash from operating revenues of the 
water and sewer system. 

VIII. BUDGETARY DATA 

The City council adopts an annual legal budget, which covers the General Fund, the Enterprise Fund, and c e h  Special 
Revenue Funds (Municipal Aid Road). All unencumbered appropriations lapse at fiscal yearend. The budges for the General 
Fund and Special Revenue Funds are prepared on the modified accrual basis. The budgets for the Enterprise Funds are prepared 
on the modified accrual basis and include debt principal retirements and capital outlays as expenses. Additionally, the Enterprise 
Funds do not include depreciation as a budgetary expense. Budgetary level of control is exercised at the department level. Any 
revisions must be approved by the City Council. During fiscal year 2004, the City Council did not approve any budget 
amendments. 





CITY OF LAWRENCEBURG, KENTUCKY 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL-GENERAL FUND 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2004 

BUDGETED 
AMOUNTS 

Variance with 
Original Final Budget- 
and Final Actual Over/(Under) 

Revenues: 
Property taxes 
Utility franchise fees 
Rental Income 
Licenses 
Intergovernmental revenues 
Cemetery 
Service charges 
Fines and forfeitures 
Contributions 
Interest revenue 
Other taxes 
Other 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures: 
General Government 
Street 
Plice 
Fire 
EMS 
Cemetery 

Total Expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures (339,819) 129,709 469,528 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Capital lease 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 
Proceeds from sales of capital assets 

Total other f m c i n g  (uses) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other 
sources over (under) expenditures and other uses (190,819) 255,237 446,056 

Fund balance at beginning of yea 
Fund balance at end of year 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 





CITY OF LAWRENCEBURG, KENTUCKY 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL-MUNICIPAL AID ROAD FUND 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2004 

BUDGETED 
mouNTS 

Variance with 
Original Final Budget- 
and Final Actual Over/(Under) 

Revennes: 
Intergovernmental revenues 
Interest revenue 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures: 
Street 

Total Expenditures 

Excess of revenues over expenditures 29,548 29,548 

Fund balance at beginning of year 
Fund balance at end of year 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 





CITY OF LAWNCEBURG, KENTUCKY 

SCHEDULEOF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED N N E  30,2004 

Pass- 

Federal Through 

CFDA Entity Identifying Federal 

Federal GrantorIPms-Through ~ o r I P r o g r a m  or C1uster Tale Number Number Expmrliiures 

HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT 

Parsed Through the Kentucky D e p m e n t  of Local Government: 

Community Development Block GrantiSafds Program 

TOTAL U.S. DEPT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT 

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECCION AGENCY 

Water Management Program 66.468 XP98493200 313,517 

TOTAL U.S DEPT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 313,517 

HOMELAND SECURITY 

Passed Through FEMA-Emergency: 

Preparedness and Response 97.039 EMW-2003-GF-16116 10,396 

TOTAL DEPT OF HOMELAND SECURITY 10,396 

U.S. DEPT OF AGRICULTURE 

Passed Through Rural Development: 

Water and Waste Disposal System for Rural Communities 10.760 2004 Loan 8,778,000 

TOTAL U.S. DEPT OF AGRICULTURE 8,778,000 

U.S. DEPT OFJUSTICE 

Passed Through Kentucky Depariment ofJustice: 

COPS 16.710 2003 5,500 

TOTAL U.S. DEPT OF JUSTICE 5,500 

TOTAL FEDERAL EXPENDITURES OF AWARDS 

See acc6mpanying notes to schedule ofexpenditures offederal awards. 





CITY OF LAWRENCEBURG, KENTUCKY 
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

FOR TEE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2004 

NOTE A-BASIS OF PRESENTATION 

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of the City of Lawreneeburg, 
Kentucky and is presented on the accrual basis of accounting. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the 
requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of Stales, LO& Governments, and Non-Profit ~r&izations. Therefore, some 
amounts presented in this schedule may differ from mounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial 
statements. 





SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 





CITY OF LAWRENCEBURG, KENTUCKY 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2004 

Section I-Summary of Auditor's Results 

Financial Stztements 

Type of auditor's report issued (qualified): 

Internal control over financial reporting: 

Material weakness(es) identified? Yes X No 

Reportable coudition(s) identified 
that are not considered to be material 
weaknesses? Yes X none reported 

Noncompliance material to financial 
statements noted? Yes X No 

Federal Awards 

Internal control over major programs: 

Material weakness(es) iden@ed? Yes X No 

. Reportable conditiou(s) identified 
that are not considered to be material 
weaknesses? Yes A none reported 

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs (unqualified): 

Any audit findings disclosed that are 
required to be reported in accordance 
with section 510(a) of Circular A-1331 Yes X No 

Identification of major programs: 

P 
Water and Waste Disposal Systems for Rural Communities Loan 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish 
between type A and type B programs: mmQ.Q 
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? Yes X No 





Section U-Financial Statement of Findings 

No matters were reported 

Seetion III-Federal Award Findings and Ouestioned Costs 

No matters were reported. 





CITY OF LAWRENCEBURG, KENTUCKY 
SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS 

JUNE 30,2004 

There were no prior year audit Wings. 





INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
ON COMPLIANCE AND ON INTERNAL 

CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTTNG 
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 





F A R M E R  & H U M B L E  
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

P.O. BOX 212 
LAWRENCEBURG, KENTUCKY 40342 

(502) 839-3588 

Honorable Mayor and City Council 
City of Lawrenceburg 
205 East Woodford Street 
Lawenceburg, Kentucky 40342 

We have audited the financial statements of the City of Lamenceburg, Kentucky as of and for the year ended June 30, 
2004, and have issued our report thereon dated September 15,2004. We conducted ow audit in accordance with auditing 
standardsgenerally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
riD . . t, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. 

Compliance 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Lawrenceburg, Kentucky's financial shtements are 
free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulation, contracts 
and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement 
amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and 
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed one instance of noncompliance that is . . 
required to be reported under -. Deposits at Lawrenceburg National Bank were 
underwllateralized at year-end. The collateral is adequate at the report date. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
In planning and performing our audit, we considered the C i  of Lawenceburg, Kentucky's internal control over financial 
reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements 
and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. Our consideration of the internal control over 
financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control over financial reporting that might be 
material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the i n t e d  
control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements in amounts that would be material in 
relation to the financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the 
normal course of performing their assigned bctions. We noted no matters involving the internal control over financial 
reporting and its operation that we consider to be material wea!aesses. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, others within the organization, City Council, and 
federal awarding agencies and pass through entities, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than 
these specified parties. 

Farmer &Humble 
Certified Public Accountants 
September 15,2004 





LWEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS 

APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJORPROGRAM AND 
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLlkUCE IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH OMB ClRCULAR A-133 





F A R M E R  & H U M B L E  
CERTlFJED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

P.O. BOX 212 
LAWRENCEBURG, KENTUCKY 40342 

(502) 839-3588 

Honorable Mayor and City Council 
City of Lawenceburg 
205 East Woodford Stred 
Lawenceburg, Kentucky 40342 

Compliance 
We have audited the compliance of the City of Lawenceburg, Kentucky with the types of compliance requirements described in 
the f i  A-1 33 f" that are applicable to each of its 
major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2004. City of Lawenceburg, Kentucky's major federal programs are 
identified in the summary of audit results section of tfie accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with 
the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of 
the City of Lawrenceburg, Kentucky's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the City of Laweneeburg, 
Kentucky's compliance based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 

. . , issued by the Comptroller General of the 
United States; and OMB Circular A-133, . Those standards 
and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perfom the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that wuld have a direct and material effect on amajor 
federal program cmumed. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about City of Lawenceburg, Kentucky's 
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We 
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion Our audit does not provide a legal determination on the City of 
Lawenceburg, Kentucky 's compliance with those requirements. 

In our opinion, City of Lawenceburg, Kentucky, compli4 in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above that 
are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30,2004. 

Internal Control Over Compliance 
The management of City of Lawenceburg, Kentucky, is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control 
over compliance with requirements of laws, regulation, contracts and grants applicable to federal programs. In planning and 
performing our audit, we considered City of Lawenceburg, Kentucky's internal control over compliance with requirements that 
wuld have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of 
expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular 
A-133. 

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that 
might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal 
control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that noncompliance with applicable requirement of laws, 
regulations, contracts and grants that would be material in relation to a major federal program being audited may cccur and not be 
detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters 
involving the internal control over compliance and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, others within the organization, City Council, and federal 
awarding agencies and pass through entities, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified 
parties. 

Farmer & Humble 
C e s e d  Public Accountants 
September 15,2004 





January 26,2006 

Hon. Beth O'Domell 
Executive Director 
Kentucky Public Service Commission 
21 1 Sower Boulevard 
Frankfort, Kentucky 40601 

RE: Tariff Revision - City of Lawrenceburg /,A!!. ~006 - 000&'7 
Dear Ms. O'Donnell: 

Enclosed please find four originals of a proposed revision to the tariff of the City 
of Lawrenceburg reflecting the amendment of its existing Water Purchase Contract with 
the South Anderson Water District. You will also find copies of the Amendment to 
Water Purchase Contract and the ordinance passed by the City to confonn its then 
existing ordinances to the provisions of the Amendment. 

Should you have any questions or if I can provide you or Commission staff any 
fixther information, please do not hesitate to contact me. Thank you for your assistance 
in this matter. 

Enclosures: Revised Tariff sheet 
Amendment to Water Purchase Contract 
City of Lawrenceburg Ordinance 2006-03 

cc: Ray Edelman, Esq. 





FOR Lawrenceburs Kentucb 
Name of Municipality 

P.S.C. KY. No. 

SHEET NO. 

City of Lawrenceburg CANCELLING P.S.C. KY. NO. - 
(Name of Municipal Utility) 

SHEET NO. 

RATES AND CHARGES 

MONTHLY WOLESALE WATER RATE: 

South Anderson Water District 

(I) First 8 Million Gallons (@ $2.1 5 per 1,000) 

(I) All Usage over 8 Million Gallons 

$17,200.00 Minimum Bill 

2.00 Per 1,000 Gallons 

(T) Per ORDINANCE 2006-03 (Amending Ordinance 2004-14) these rates shall be subject to change 
annually in accord with the increase in the Consumer Price Index as provided by the Kentucky Governor's 
Office for Local Development and, no more often than once every five years, based on the results of a Cost 
of Service Study. 

(T) A Water purchase Contracf entered as of the 14th day of June, 2004, and an Amendment to Water 
Purchase Contract entered as of the 19th day of January, 2006, between the City of Lawrenceburg and the 
South Anderson Water District is on file at the offices of the Kentucky Public Service Commission. 

DATE OF ISSUE 
M o n t m a h e a r  / 

DATE EFFECTIVE Lbvw ~7~ ZCO@ 
Monthfl)a)~ear ' 

ISSUEDBY d '&A 
(Signature of Officer) 

TITLE C i t y  C l e r k / A d m i n i s t r a t o r  

BY AUTHORITY OF ORDER OF THE PUBLIC SERVICE 
COMMISSION IN CASE NO. dated 





AMENDMENT TO WATER PURCHASE CONTRACT 

$3 
This Amendment to Water Purchase Contract is entered this fl day of January, 

2006, by and between the City of Lawrenceburg, Kentucky, 100 North Main Street, 

Lawrenceburg, Kentucky 40342, hereinafter referred to as the "Seller", and the South 

Anderson Water District, Post Office Box 16, Lawrenceburg, Kentucky 40342, 

hereinafter referred to as "Purchaser." 

WHEREAS, the Seller and Purchaser entered a Water Purchase Contract dated 

June 14,2004, and 

WHEREAS, the Seller and Purchaser wish to make certain amendments to the 

terms of the Water Purchase Contract. 

NOW THEREFORE THE PARTIES AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 

1. Section B. of the Water Purchase Contract is amended by eliminating footnote 

1 in its entirety. 

2. Subsection C. 5. of the Water Purchase Contract is amended to read as follows: 
"5. (Modification of Contract) a That the provisions of this contract pertaining 
to the schedule of rates to be paid by the Purchaser for water delivered are subject 
to modification pursuant to the Consumer Price Index (CPI) adjustment of rates as 
follows: On or before March 1 of each calendar year, the Treasurer for the 
Seller shall access from the Kentucky Department for Local Government, or 
its successor, the annual increase or decrease in the consumer Price Index (CPI) of 
the preceding year as otherwise set out in KRS 83A.075 at the time of the 
execution of this Amendment to Water Purchase Contract. If the CPI has 
increased, the Treasurer shall calculate an increase of the rates and charges for the 
usage of water by applying the CPI to each rate and charge. Notice of the CPI 
percentage increase of each water rate and charge shall be mailed to Purchaser not 
later than May 30 and published by Seller in a local newspaper qualifying under 
KRS Cllapter 424. The increase shall be effective for all bills issued after May 30 
or the date of publication, which ever is later, provided that the CPI rate increase 
shall be applied to all of the Seller's customers. 





"b. That the Seller may from time to time, in lieu of the procedure set forth in 
subsection 5. a. above, obtain a Cost of Service Study of Seller's system. Such 
cost of service study shall be based on data from Seller's fiscal year immediately 
prior to the year in which the study is performed and shall include increased 
capitalization necessary for Seller to serve customers in Purchaser's service 
territory. Any increase or decrease in rates demonstrated by the cost of service 
study shall become effective in Seller's fiscal year immediately following 
presentation of the completed study to the parties. Rates determined by a cost of 
service study shall remain in effect for the fiscal year in which they are imposed 
and may thereafter be increased pursuant to subsection 5.a. above or increased or 
decreased pursuant to a subsequent cost of service study performed pursuant to 
this subsection. Seller may not increase or decrease rates based on a cost of 
service study more often than every fifth year. If Seller adopts any rate increase or 
decrease kom a cost of service study, it shall adopt 41 increases or decreases 
recommended by that study. 

"c. That the other provisions of this contract may be modified or altered by 
written agreement of the parties." 

3. It is acknowledged between the parties that this Amendment to Water Purchase 

Contract must be approved by the Kentucky Public Service Commission. Not 

withstanding the provisions of Subsection 5., above, in the month following its approval, 

if such approval occurs prior to April 30,2006, the rates set forth in subsections B. 1. a. 

and b. shall be increased by 3.260 % for the remaining months prior to June 1,2006. If 

approval is received after April 30, 2006, the rates for Seller's fiscal year 2006-07 

subsequent to approval shall be calculated pursuant to the provisions of Subsection 5. as 

if the 3.260% increase for fiscal year 2005 had been applied. 

4. It is acknowledged between the parties that Seller has incurred costs in the 

amount of $1,330.00 to begin a cost of service study pursuant to the Water Purchase 

Contract. Purchaser agrees to reimburse Seller's costs for such study within thirty (30) 

days of receipt of documentation showing amounts paid. 

5. Upon execution of this Amendment to Water Purchase Contract, Seller shall 

take all necessary action to conform its ordinances to the provisions set forth herein. 

6. The parties shall cooperate fully in obtaining all necessary regulatory or other 

approvals to which this Amendment to Water Purchase Contract is subject. 





7. The parties represent, each to the other, that they have taken all actions 

necessary to approve execution of this Amendment to Water Purchase Contract by their 

authorized representatives. 

8. All portions of the Water Purchase Contract not specifically altered by this 

Amendment to Water Purchase Contract shall remain in full force and effect. 

WITNESS the signatures of the parties, by and through their authorized 

representatives, on the date first above written. 

SELLER: PURCHASER: /F;zF 
. Bobby W. Sparrow, Mayor 

ATTEST: ATTEST: 

Edwinna Baker, Clerk George ~ i & e ,  Secretary 





AN ORDINANCE RELATING TO THE 
RATES CHARGED THE SOUTH ANDERSON WATER DISTRICT 

BY THE CITY OF LAWRENCEBURG, KENTUCKY 

WHEREAS. the City of Lawtenceburg, Kentucky. and the South Anderson Water 
District entered a Water Purchase Contract dated June 14,2004. and 

WHEREAS, the City and South Anderson entered an Amendment to Water 
Purchase Contract dated January a. 2006, and 

WHEREAS, the Amendment entered by the City and South Anderson requires 
certain modifications to the existing ordinances of the City of Lawrenceburg, 

NOW THEREFORE. be it ordained by the Board of Council of the City of 
Lawrenceburg, convened in special session on the 20th day of January, 2006. as follows: 

Section One. Section 5 1.108(D) of the ordinances of the City of Lawrenceburg is 
amended to read as follows: 

(D) Consumer Price Index (CPI) adjustment of rates. On or before March 
1 of each calendar year this section is in effect, the Treasurer for the city 
shall access from the Kentucky 
Governor's Oflce for Local Development. or its successor. the annual 
increase or decrease in the Consumer Price Index (CPI) of the preceding 
year as otherwise set out in KRS 83A.075 at the time of the enactment of 
this section. If the CPI has increased, the Treasurer shall calculate an 
increase of the rates and charges for the usage of water by applying the 
CPI to each rate and charge. Notice of the CPI percentage increase of each 
water rate and charge shall be mailed to each customer not later than May 
30 and published in a local newspaper qua.lif)ing under KRS Chapter 424. 

Section Two. Section 5 1.108(E) of the ordinances of the City of Lawrenceburg is 
amended to read as follows: 

(El @ . . 

In lieu of the procedure setforth 
in subsection (D) of this section, the ratespaid by Vater Districts may be 
subject to change based on the results of a Cost of Service S t u 4  in a 
manner consistent with the City's then existing contracts with the Water 
Districts. 





Section Three. This ordinance shall become effective upon passage, attestation. 
publication, and the approval by the Kentucky Public Service Commission of tariffs of 
South Anderson Water District consistent with this ordinance and the Water Purchase 
Contract and Amendment to Water Purchase Contract between the City of Lawrenceburg, 
Kentucky. and the South Anderson Water District. 

Passed and approved by the Board of Council of the City of Lawrenceburg, 
Kentucky on this 13th day of February. 2006. with yea and nay votes of the Board of 
Council as follows: 

Yea Nay 
Ken Evans x - .  

Lany Giies .  at - 
Alan Kays J - 
Bob Mefford - x - 
Helen Shryock X - 
Denny Warford ~-t - 

Given First Reading and Passed on January 9.2006 

Given Second Reading and Passed on January 20.2006 

Published in The Anderson News on January 25.2006 

Attest: 

- - 
City of Lawrenceburg 





E X E C U T I V E  O R D E R  

Number 2006 -- 01 
Relating to the delegation of the power, duties or responsibiliries of Mayor 

of the City of Lawrenceburg, Kentucky: 

W H E R E .A S. Kentucky Revised Statutes 83A.130 (7) .  (10). codified 

in the Lawrenceburg, Kentucky, code of Ordinances Section 31.14 and 31.17 

delegarion of duries by Executive Order. provides that the Mayor may delegate any power. 
duties. 

responsibiiiries, or official authority to iulfiii execurive functions to subordinate officers and 

employers by Executive Order: 

W H E R E 21 5. 1 shall be absent from the City of Lawrenceburg for a 

period of time commencing on Februarv 76. 2006 and ending on. February 29. 2006 said 

period inclusive of the aforementioned dates: 

N 0 W T H E R E F 0 R E. I. Bobbv W. Sparrow. blayor of the City 

of the City of Lawrenceburg, Kentucky. do hereby order. direct. name and appoint Edwinna 

Baker as Acring blayor of the City of Lawrenceburg, for the aforementioned period of rime, all - 
pursuant to the aforementioned legislation. 

, day of February 2006 

Lawrenceburg 




